



FuseGI - "Cooperation for fusing skills on Cloud-based Open GeoInformatics: Innovative Environmental Management"





AGREEMENT NUMBER: 2019-1-FR01-KA203-062767

Coordinator: UNIVERSITE D'AVIGNON

Leading Organisation of IO4: DIMOKREITIO PANEPISTIMIO THRAKIS (DPT)

Participating Organisations in IO4: DIMOKREITIO PANEPISTIMIO THRAKIS, EE4S, INSTITUTE OF INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGIES, MAISON REGIONALE DE L' EAU, INTERNATIONAL HELLENIC UNIVERSITY, AVIGNON UNIVERSITY, HELLENIC FORESTS PARTNERSHIP (OLYMPOS PC)

INTELLECTUAL OUTPUT 4 FINAL REPORT CREATION

Activity	Responsible	Organisation
Document writing	Dr.Dionissis Latinopoulos, Maria Koulouri	DPT
Review	Dr.Christos Akratos, Dr. Fotios Maris Dr. Georgia Galidaki	DPT OLYMPOS
Acceptance	Dr. Konstantinos Chalikakis	AVIGNON UNIVERSITY

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	SUN	/IMARY 1
	ABE	3REVIATIONS
1	Intr	oduction
	1.1	Overall objectives, implemented activities and results of the FuseGI Project
	1.2	Interrelations of project Intellectual Outputs 4
	1.3	Scope and Objectives of Intellectual Output 4 4
	1.4	Structure of Intellectual Output 4 5
	1.5	Intellectual Output 4 Sub tasks5
2	Me	thodological approach
	2.1	Preparatory phase 6
	2.2	Creation of courses, case studies and testing7
	2.3	Revising the toolkit
3	The	courses
	3.1	Course 1: Introduction
	3.2	Course 2: Spatial Data 15
	3.3	Course 3: Introduction to QGIS Software 20
	3.4	Course 4: Georeferencing, Scanning and Editing Tools
	3.5	Course 5: Spatial Analysis
	3.6	Course 6: Cartography 44
	3.7	Course 7: Grass GIS 52
	3.8	Course 8: Hydrological Analysis and QGIS Tools 59
	3.9	Course 9: Web Scraping Applications in QGIS
4	The	case studies
	4.1	LULC/FOREST case study74
	4.2	Health Case Study81
	4.3	Case Study 1 in Hydrology
	4.4	Case Study 2 in Hydrology
5	Inn	ovation, Tangibility and Transferability93

SUMMARY

AVIGNON UNIVERSITE, in cooperation with DEMOCRITUS UNIVERSITY OF THRACE, EE4S, INSTITUTE OF INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGIES, MAISON REGIONALE DE L' EAU, INTERNATIONAL HELLENIC UNIVERSITY and HELLENIC FORESTS (OLYMPOS PC), has undertaken the implementation of the project entitled "*FuseGI – Cooperation for fusing skills on Cloud-based Open GeoInformatics: Innovative Environmental management*" under the Agreement n° 2019-1-FR01-KA203-062767 with Agence Erasmus + France, within the "2019 Round 1 KA2 - Cooperation for innovation and the exchange of good practices KA203 - Strategic Partnerships for higher education" Call.

More precisely, this intellectual output aims to address all call priorities described in the Application Form, meaning: Open education and innovative practices in a digital era (Horizontal) by creating a set of free novel courses in a public platform including hands on training and self-evaluation techniques, Tackling skills gaps and mismatches (HE) since it follows the assessment of market needs (IO1) and educational gaps (IO2) covering an important part of the draft curricula, and Supporting individuals in acquiring and developing basic skills and key competences (Horizontal) since it actually provides an environment for this though 9 courses and 4 specialized practical case studies that were created responding in actual market tasks.

This report presents the design and implementation of Intellectual Output 4 "Training toolkit" highlighting the innovative means adopted in methodological approach to create tangible and transferable results in the Geographic Information (GI) field.

This IO aims to deliver a pilot training program, covering basic theory required for geospatial data in order to introduce students to the practical part, freeware (software) training, providing extra (free) training material, tests, self-evaluation, course and project evaluation forms, including also hands on practice, podcasts and practical case studies among others. The training toolkit was formed trying to reach a variety of people, of different academic levels and fields.

The IO4 builds upon the findings of IO1 using field review to locate the gap between the actual and desired market skills, IO2 assessing the gap in GIS education in the participating countries and setting a draft curricula, and IO3 researching the available cloud-based platforms, VLE applicability and opportunities for building interactive novel courses, with complementarity and not overlapping.

The findings from the course creation, the course and platform testing and evaluation, of IO4 on diverse subfields of the environmental sciences were used as input data in the core of IO5 with the ability to upgrade and expand them.

ABBREVIATIONS

GI	Geoinformatics
GIS	Geographic Information Systems
10	Intellectual Output
VLE	Virtual Learning Environment
ICT	Information communication Technology

1 Introduction

1.1 Overall objectives, implemented activities and results of the FuseGI Project

The FuseGI consortium had identified a gap between what the academic world provides towards its teachings and what the environmental labor market requires in terms of Geographic Information Systems (GIS) skills. Skills that are nevertheless essential for environmental and health risks management.

The goal of this consortium was to conduct an in-depth study (qualitative and quantitative) on the subject and then to design, develop and make available an adapted online tool to fill this GIS skills shortage to students and young professionals for the needs of the labor market.

The FuseGI consortium is composed of experts in the fields of water management, forestry and health (from both the academic world and the private sector) as well as computer scientists capable of setting up and sustaining online training tools. It was therefore relevant from the perspective of the project. ERASMUS+ through the projects "Cooperation in innovation and exchange of best practices" was the ideal and most relevant framework to achieve a project in this direction.

The overall objectives of the FuseGI project were:

- 1. Establishment of a transnational, interdisciplinary and open collaboration between academia and industry within the EU to address the training needs in GIS for better functionality and better environmental and health risks management.
- Knowledge transfer and bridging of gaps in academic and professional experience of the partners in the use of GIS applications in different key environmental and health sectors.
- **3.** Improved professional skills in the use of open GIS platforms for interdisciplinary collaborative data processing.
- 4. Development, implementation and validation of a virtual learning environment (VLE).
- **5.** Design of the architecture of an adapted curriculum, corresponding to the needs of the market world, for master's degree courses.

Five transferable, innovative and tangible outputs:

- IO1: Research and field review
- IO2: Draft Curricula
- IO3: Learning platform
- **IO4: Training toolkit**
- **IO5: Final Curricula**

1.2 Interrelations of project Intellectual Outputs

The concept and the methodological approach of the FuseGI project allowed strong interactions between all intellectual outputs. Each intellectual output represent an innovative, transferable and tangible result also as a necessary step for the project finalisation.

The following scheme (Fig. 1) represent the interrelations and connectivity of the FuseGI intellectual outputs.



Figure 1 : Scheme of interrelations of FuseGI intellectual outputs

The IO4 builds upon the findings of IO1 using field review to locate the gap between the actual and desired market skills though GIS systems and curricula revision, questionnaires. It also incorporates IO2 assessing the gap in GIS education in the participating countries and setting draft curricula, lectures and courses. IO4 and IO3 co-development and creation provided the basis through researching the available cloud-based platforms, VLE applicability and opportunities for building interactive novel courses. All IOs are really important standalone procedures, necessary to map gaps, needs, tools and methods, in a market with advancing needs as they owed in a study-based project, and all are fused with complementarity and not overlapping points

1.3 Scope and Objectives of Intellectual Output 4

The scope of this Output is a multiple one since it actually creates a solid tool to be adopted by institutions, enterprises and individuals willing to learn or deepen their knowledge on GIS. FuseGI within this project wills to develop a program toolkit in order to present the program features, methodology, contents and delivery mechanisms.

The toolkit was designed to assist the user to articulate a clear understanding of the context of FuseGI and actively engage themselves to learning process and accomplish courses as well

as enhance the operational capacity of FuseGI project to deliver successful GI and Environmental Management knowledge.

All training material/ references are uploaded at the project's platform and will be updated. Training coordinators, curriculum developers, and trainers can all use the Toolkit in preparing and presenting GI and Environmental Management training as was stated in the AF.

Though, through the solid findings of the previous IOs and the partnership's will to create something timeless as a basis for further development this toolkit was even developed to a complete set of courses, able to be included even in graduate and master programmes with an equivalence of 7 ECTS. What's more, the entire tool is based on freeware (QGIS) supporting openness in its entity using explicitly creative commons rights, open data, open courses and free books and manuals in the PowerPoints and in the supplementary material and operating through an open VLE platform.

The consortium's effort surpassed the foreseen working man-days but created more than a platform, but a self-tutoring tool for scholars and businesses, free from rights, easy and accessible.

1.4 Structure of Intellectual Output 4

The content of this report is organized as shown below.

- 1st section describes introductory elements for the IO4
- 2nd section delineates the methodological approach adopted for the IO4 production
- 3rd section details on each course separately
- 4th section details on each case study

5th section highlights the importance of the findings delineating innovation, tangibility and transferability

1.5 Intellectual Output 4 Sub tasks

Sub task
Strategic design to apply the FuseGI vision using open software
Consulting professionals on teaching methods and desired outcomes for building a curriculum
Revise existing available training and teaching material
Definition of access criteria, the participants profile, entry requirements and selection process
Setting courses' and case studies' criteria (format, duration, rights, training, testing, evaluation)
Testing VLE platforms compatibility and extensions
Determination of Desired Cognitive skills and course thematic structuring
Creation of the courses (ppts, podcasts, accompanying documents, training material, tests and evaluation forms)
Selection and formatting of real-life practical case studies

Testing of toolkit within the platform
Launching the training toolkit
Review period (internal and external)
Launching the revised final version of the toolkit

2 Methodological approach

In order to effectively train the users of the platform, 9 online courses are available on the platform as well as 4 case studies to put into practice the theoretical explanations.

The FuseGI VLE platform currently offers 9 courses to bridge the gap between the knowledge of graduating students and the expectations of professionals for the job. Classes may sometimes contain small exercises to help understand the lesson. In addition, a case study is available to implement all the functionalities of GIS and more particularly QGis.

The structure of each course is very similar: we first find an introduction, then a plan defining the different parts of the development, the development in question and then a conclusion and the associated sources. In addition, the language used for the courses is English, as it is universal, it facilitates access to all European users.

2.1 Preparatory phase

After having conceived the Strategic design how to apply the FuseGI vision and how to conform with the AF stating "The tool kit will be organized in several major units. Each unit will be made up of modules which themselves will contain smaller units covering an important component and learning objectives of GI and Environmental Management" we selected using open GIS software and the optimal selection was QGIS based on the availability of a range of add-ons and the compatibility with other software.

Given the recent covid period and the "activation" of distance learning techniques, we consulted professionals on teaching methods and desired outcomes for building a curriculum based on the IO2.

Then we revised the existing available training and teaching material from institution open courses, data providers, QGIS tutorials and tips, and existing exercises in order not to overlap with already accessible material (but to use it as supportive providing links and databases)

In close collaboration with the VLE platform, we defined the access criteria, the inclusivity (e.g. for people with impaired vision), the broad range of participants profile, entry requirements and selection process adopting the idea that the theory that is taught and the information given must be understood by both a graduate of an engineering school and philosophy.

The next step was setting courses' and case studies' criteria (format, duration, rights, training, testing, evaluation). So, for each course, we selected to provide a course summary, the cognitive skills, a podcast for the course presentation, the basic PowerPoint presentation, keywords, sources and literature used, a folder with additional data supplementary material

(links, books, databases, exercises), create a short quiz (mostly for self-assessment reasons, not for grading) with multiple takes ability and both a course and project evaluation form.

Then we tested the selected open VLE platform Moodle for compatibility with embedded video and document players safeguarding also inclusion policy.

2.2 Creation of courses, case studies and testing

Based on the Outcomes of IO2 and IO3 and the recognized range of gaps both in market skills and GeoInformatics education we deemed that a set of 9 courses, 3 of them introductory and 6 practical (including also QGIS addons like GRASS) as described in the pictures below (Fig. 2, 3).



Figure 2. Lessons 1 to 5 flow chart with basic context presentation.



Figure 3. Lessons 6 to 9 flow chart with basic context presentation.

As the case study selection, we came in contact with experts and professionals in the fields of water, forests and health to meet their most usual tasks and needs through these case studies. Then we had to find the primary-raw data and select the proper articulation for describing the problem at hand and the solution we seek. Then we chose to "assist" the students by providing them optionally with a series of sub-tasks, as steps for the case study completion and where they could find each QGIS command to perform each action.

Then, before the official launch of the toolkit, we tested it with experts and then with students from participating universities (master and graduate) both individually and during C2 and C3 joint training event. Corrections were made according to indications.

2.3 Revising the toolkit

The first version was completed in time according to the Application Form. The final teaching material included in IO4 was produced by co-shaping the IO5 final Fuse GI curricula. This approach was selected in order to endorse the results from the validation phases that were held during the program, meaning the first edition of the platform tested by the consortium, focus groups, students and dissemination events as described in the Application Form. These gave important feedback that allowed us to evolve and adapt the material. These findings could be concluded in:

Augmented need for extra hands-on practice.

So, the second version of the toolkit had a clear aim: to ensure the competency-based approach promoted by IO5 finalized so as to fully master the newly acquired knowledge on QGIS tools and techniques.

The actual revised version of the toolkit had some adjustments for every level of the Finalcurricula design according to the competency-based approach.

Discovery level: The introductory courses were increased from 2 to 3 courses to distribute (equalize) the teaching duration and break it into more easily assimilable lectures.

Getting started level: There was the need for even more supplementary material related to the training for further self-engagement. The courses already included databases and practice exercises but in the final version, these were doubled in number.

Advanced use level: The revised version of the toolkit, trying to cope with the range of skills of the involved "students" of the program decided to raise the difficulty in two real-life case studies, naming Forestry and Hydrology ones along with the addition of Hydrology 2 case study related with biodiversity.

This series of adjustments in the first version advanced the training material (structure and content) and increased the overall quality of the toolkit ensuring competency-based approach which is the goal of IO5.

3 The courses

In order to effectively train the users of the platform, **9** online courses are available on the platform as well as **4** case studies to put into practice the theoretical explanations.

The FuseGI VLE platform currently offers 9 courses to bridge the gap between the knowledge of graduating students and the expectations of professionals for the job. Classes may

sometimes contain small exercises to help understand the lesson. In addition, a case study is available to implement all the functionalities of GIS and more particularly QGis.

The structure of each course is very similar: we first find an introduction, then a plan defining the different parts of the development, the development in question and then a conclusion and the associated sources. In addition, the language used for the courses is English, as it is universal, it facilitates access to all European users.

3.1 Course 1: Introduction

The first course introduces the **basic concepts of GIS**, but also the definitions. We also find key figures and the history of GIS. We also learn more about the **possible applications of GIS** and its uses in certain areas. These courses allows to anyone know the **types of questions that can be solved thanks to GIS** and it also highlights the different software that can be used to make GIS. This course also illustrates the advantages and disadvantages of using GIS (**Figure 4**).



Figure 4 : Slideshow map of course 1, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

The first part of this course defines the basic concepts of GIS, as well as the different reasons for using them to improve communication between different scientists (Figure 5).



Figure 5 : Slide 6 of course 1, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

The courses are quite simple to understand, a maximum of figures are added to the text to facilitate the understanding of it **(Figure 6).** For example, in order to explain the history of GIS, it is possible to use a timeline.



Figure 6 : Slide 7 of course 1, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

The second part of this module traces the history and improvements of GIS over time, from its inception in 1960 to the present **day (Figure 7)**.



Figure 7 : Slide 8 of course 1, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

The third part lists all the fields that can use GIS (Figure 5-2), such as tourism, geology, health or politics.



Figure 8 : Slide 9 of course 1, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

This part also shows the possible use of GIS in different fields such as climate change, ecology, hydrology or forestry (Figure 9).



Figure 9 : Slides 10, 12 and 13 of course 1, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

The fourth part provides a better understanding of the use of GIS. Indeed, this part explains what types of problems can be solved using GIS, such as defining a forest area sensitive to climate change (Figure 10).

4. Questions GIS can answer (1/3)



- It can give answers to a variety of questions and spatial problems through the processing of both spatial and attribute data
- Users of GIS can answer geographic queries and analysis and make better decisions by creating better solutions.
- GIS can identify spatial relationships between different map features.
- What is at ..? This is the first and main question that GIS can answer by giving a variety of information concerning a specific geographical area. A GIS map can combine different kind of data for a particular area e.g. place name, streets, buildings or even trend of population. Users have access to both quantitative and qualitative characteristics of the geographical area under study.
- Where is what..? This could be the second most important function of GIS combining spatial information. Instead of identifying locations, it can also find places where special conditions are satisfied. Users can find places that meet specific requirements. This GIS feature might be the most important in decision making.

FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills

FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills

13 4. Questions GIS can answer (2/3) Erasmus-A GIS map can combine different layers of data. Landscape-hydrography-natural characteristics-buildings-roads and land uses. That is why GIS can be applied to almost any profession and science. Researchers can be interested in finding water bodies close to industrial areas. Hydrologists can capture water flow and suggest new hydraulic projects. Ecologists can search and study natura areas close to residential areas or study the increasing or decreasing trends of flora and fauna in each area. Foresters can find, study or create buffer zones around vulnerable areas to fires. Engineers can study population growth and design new projects. • The integrated management of water resources, coastal areas, natura areas and the organization and planning of cities requires the use of GIS. What has changed ..? GIS can show land use changes over time providing useful information and results for landscape fragmentation. FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills 14 4. Questions GIS can answer (3/3) Erasmus+ Understanding the need to manage environmental issues, European Union has developed the Copernicus program in cooperation with the European Space Agency (ESA). The idea firstly developed under the name Global Monitoring for Environmental Security (GMES), which was later renamed Copernicus. The aim of the program is to achieve a global, continuous and high quality observation of the Earth in order to provide accurate and in-time information to improve environmental management, understand the effects of climate change and ensure security policy. · The program was established by the regulation 377/2014 [2] in April 2014. The platform was designed in a way that it can gather all the information about the environment and monitor land uses. Decision makers can export any time the picture of earth's "health".

Figure 10 : Slides 13, 14, 15 of course 1, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

.eu/global/p

In the fifth part, users of the platform become aware of all types of software using GIS, whether paid software, such as ArcGIS, or the QGIS suite of free and open-source software (Figure 11).

15

Erasmus+

5. GIS Software (1/2)	Erasmus+
 Researchers and companies of any size in industries like healthcare, marketing, con can use GIS and its capabilities to take their business one step further. 	struction, management and more
GIS software can be stored into different categories: open source software & comme	ercial or proprietary GIS software.
Open source GIS are based on three main groups in terms of programming language	s: 'C' languages, Java and .NET.
 A project started in 1982 by the United States Army but is now open source, known a popular 'C' based open source GIS software. 	as Quantum GIS (QGIS) is the most
 Java offers geospatial functions like union or buffer and allows comparison between are among the most known open source GIS using Java tools. 	objects. Open Map and Geotools
In the GIS software market, companies with the highest share are the following: ESRI-ArcMap, ArcGIS	@esri
 Autodesk-AutoCAD including Map 3D ERDAS IMAGINE-Erdas Apollo, Leica Photogrammetry Suite 	AUTODESK
Intergraph-GeoMedia	INTERGRAPH Rerdas
FearGi advancing GIS professional skills	
5. GIS Software (2/2)	FuseG
 The first open source system appeared in 1978. GRASS GIS is the earliest open sou vector data and was originally developed by the United States Army Corps of Engine 	
Open source GIS software available are the following: QGIS GRASS GIS	
Integrated Land and Water Information System (ILWIS)	UDia
► SAGA GIS	Obig
Other GIS open services: Google Earth Pro, Google Maps.	
 Other GIS open tools: <u>Capaware</u> - 3D simulation of the progress of a forest rainfall/rainoff simulation and flood mapping tools. 	t fire. Kalypso software – offers
 With a quick web research, prospective users can search reviews for every as following criteria: editing, imagery, analysis and cartography tools. 	vailable software considering the
PuseGi advancing GIS professional skills	17

Figure 11 : Slides 16 and 17 of course 1, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

The sixth and final part of this first GIS course is a list of advantages and benefits of using GIS in the different areas listed above (Figure 12).



Figure 12 : Slide 18 of course 1, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

This first course teaches the basics of GIS as well as when to use GIS to process information and communicate with other scientists and professionals

3.2 Course 2: Spatial Data

The second course **defines raster and vector models.** These concepts are very important for using GIS. It also includes criteria for selecting raster and vector models and a comparison between the two models. This course also introduces the **concepts of layers and objects**, **descriptive attributes**, the **nature of** spatial data, and **spatial data models (Figure 13).**



Figure 13 : Course outline 2, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

First, the course defines the concepts of data collection as well as the characteristics of spatial or geographical data (Figure 14).



Figure 14 : Slide 6 of course 2, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

Next, the course develops the three geographical features that can be connected with geometric elements: points corresponding to an object with a precise location, lines that can represent linear elements such as a river, and polygons representing specific areas (Figure 15).



Figure 15 : Slide 7 of course 2, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

Slide 8 allows platform users to better understand attributes and their usefulness in a GIS project (Figure 16).



Figure 16 : *Slide 8 of course 2, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.*

This course is widely used to define the basics for beginners or to make reminders to more experienced users, with for example the slide "Layers and objects (1/2)" which defines what a layer is (**Figure 17**).

3. Layers and objects (1/2)	Erasmus+
> A. Layers	
 The traditional method of mapping the geographical space occupied by spatial data is a series of layers. The modeling method developed is known as <i>layer based approach</i> and is still used today. Layers are defined based on: 	The first space
Geographical phenomenon,	> Roads
 Geometry (contains data of geographic entities: points, lines or polygons) and Descriptive attributes. 	> Land uses
	> Boundaries
Examples of thematic layers: hydrological network, buildings, road network or	> Hydrography
ground cover. Depending on map's purpose layers alternate and vary.	Elevation
Layers analysis determines the degree of the model's completeness (how many?) and depends on the purpose (which?).	> Aerial photo
From reality	
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills	

Figure 17 : Slide 9 of course 2, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

Like the previous slide, this one is intended to define another concept that is very important for the use of GIS, the notion of object. It therefore defines objects and helps to understand their uses (Figure 18).

3. L	. Layers and objects (2/2)	Erasmus+
>	> B. Objects	L'asilius i
•	• The space consists of distinct objects (object oriented approach). Each of them competes as a is always a gap between them. For example, a model of reality of the electricity supply network below: cables, columns and power stations.	
•	• Object oriented approach aims to improve the quality of system analysis and make it m programming language or software methodology that is built based on logical objects.	ore usable. It refers to a
•	• An object exists within problem domain and can be identified by data (attribute) or behavior relationships under processing and examination.	. Between them there are
•	The following processes are performed on the objects analysis.	
	 Construction/De-construction, creating new parameters of a class or deleting existing or Update, changing values to an object's attribute. 	ies.
	 Query, finding answers without changing any attributes. 	
	Each group of similar types of objects belongs to a certain layer. Combining layers displays the	reality through mapping.
Fus	FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills	

Figure 18 : Slide 10 of course 2, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

Then, the course again defines very important concepts to understand such as the difference between a raster model and a raster model. In addition, it defines and informs on the particularities of each of these types of models (Figure 19).



Figure 19 : Slides 11, 12, 13 of course 2, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

The course also helps to understand the geometric difference between vector and raster type representations of points, lines and polygons (Figure 20).



Figure 20 : Slide 14 of course 2, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

Thanks to this course, it will be possible for users of the platform to choose the appropriate type of model based on the data they want to analyze **(Figure 21).**



Figure 21 : Slide 15 of course 2, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

Then, the course makes the connection between the type of data and the format used in GIS software like QGIS. For example, Shapefile files are used in vector format while GeoTiff files are used in raster format (Figure 22).



Figure 22 : Slide 16 of course 2, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

Finally, this course concludes with a comparison of the two types of model by listing the advantages and disadvantages of each (Figure 23).

 Both models have advantages and disadvantages rega The need for storage space, The fidelity of displaying the location and attribu The ability of changing the efficiency scale and The possibilities of analytical processing. 	-
 Vector models Advantages Ability to fully describe topological relationships, Direct definition of surfaces, High level cartographic performance, Ability to enter descriptive attributes and Ease of updating the database. Disadvantages Complex data structures and High processing requirements in multi-layer combination case. 	 Raster models Advantages Simple data structures, Ease of combining layers, Disadvantages Requirement for large memory space, that is no longer problem. Problems arise when the performance scale requires better analysis than the raster model already has.

Figure 23 : Slide 17 of course 2, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

3.3 Course 3: Introduction to QGIS Software

The third course **introduces QGIS software.** This software is free and open access. The course consists of an introduction to QGIS software. Part of this course explains how to **download** the latest version of this software to users' personal computers, as well as the **steps to install the software**. The rest of the course **presents the different menu bars of the software**, but also how to install the **extensions** in it. In addition, this course provides an understanding of **the use of different coordinate systems**, open data, but also how to **add data and create layers**. It also helps us to properly save files and export the different projects **(Figure 24)**.



Figure 24 : Course outline 3, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

First, the course begins with an introduction defining the QGIS software suite (Figure 25).



Figure 25 : Slide 6 of course 3, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

In this course is explained the path to follow in order to successfully install QGIS (Figure 26). It is important to know that this software is downloaded with other GIS software, such as GRASS GIS and SAGA.

Setting up QGIS (1/2)	FuseGi
> Installation	Download QQIS for your platform the statements with the statements Download QQIS for your platform the statements with the statements
 Users can download and install the appropriate version of QGIS from <u>http://www.qgis.org/</u>. 	URLA LANSE OF ANY
	Brantian to Workson 1
 New versions of QGIS are usually released every few 	Select the
months but it's not necessary to upgrade the version	Bernand to Lines . appropriate
you are already using. Users are constantly adding new	Desentation BDD system.
features as everyone can modify the open source code.	Ages for coality and same and
	At purman
It is possible to have installed and run more than one	Download for Windows
versions at the same time.	
Installing QGIS is very simple. The latest version of	In the stream is also a support and in the support is their in the stream is stream is support and is the stream is the strea
QGIS can be downloaded from <u>http://download</u>	We refer to 2000 and
IN THE REAL PROPERTY INTO THE REAL	Mondennes installens MMI (han Gallandel gestages ynonenneside fer new aners) Installenses menneside
Select the latest	A Q 201 Homes in Hallow Weaven 1.00
version (more	
older releases are	
also available).	taken A
useGI advancing GIS professional skills	7

Figure 26 : Slide 7 of course 3, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

The third course is useful for learning the features of QGIS software for beginners and also serves as a reminder for more experienced users. Indeed, the menu bar is detailed to help the use of the software **(Figure 27).**

Runnin	g QGIS (1/3)		FuseGi	
areas t	itial environment may be different for each user de chat can be distinguished: Menu, Toolbox, Layers, N menu bar			
	Q Untitled Project — QGIS			
	Project Edit View Layer Settings Plugins Vector	<u>R</u> aster <u>D</u> ataba	se <u>W</u> eb <u>M</u> esh Pro <u>c</u> essing <u>H</u> elp	
Project	Is used to open, save, defining properties and printing of a project	Vector	Contains tools in order to manage vector data	
Edit	Is used to edit data of a layer, add, correct, delete, etc	Raster	Contains tools in order to manage raster data	
View	View Contains tools for navigating within a map, defining the design area, etc.		Contains tools in order to manage databases	
Layer	Layer Is used to manage layers, creating or deleting ones Processing Contains additional tools for managing vector and raster data		Contains additional tools for managing vector and raster data	
Settings	Manages the characteristics of each project (options), symbolism, etc.	Help	Leads to various helpful links	
Plugins	Manages additional tools			
FuseGI advanci	ng GIS professional skills		9	

Figure 27 : Slide 9 of course 3, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

This third course also describes the working environment of the QGIS software, such as the toolbar, the location of the list of layers created or added, the visualization area of the map as well as the status bar where we find the scale or the type of coordinates used for the project **(Figure 28).**

3. Running QGIS (2/3)		Erasmus
2. Toolbox: Tools can be displayed or hidde	• Bay Union Da	
2010 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10 - 10		
Q Q	Were tagge people	N. 6.0 (20 No.) 0 (seept) 0 (seept) 0 (seept) 0 (seept) 0 (seept) 0 (sept)
	 Map Area: In this area users can manage the result of layers editing and spatial processing. 	• •
3. Layers: The checkbox next to		5. Status Bar: The status bar
each layer is used to show or hide it. Layers series determines their design order. There are several tools for managing layers, such as grouping.		displays the Coordinates of the cursor position on the screen as it moves, the scale of the map and the Projection System used.
Chapteries (199) Nation	Contras 👋 Lan Littarde + 🖉	nerk an 1 have st 1 View Caston C
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills		10

Figure 28 : Slide 10 of course 3, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

As QGIS software is open-source software, it is possible to add extensions (plugins) in order to extend the functionality of the software. This course shows users how to install extensions in QGIS (Figure 29).



Figure 29 : Slide 11 of course 3, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

Another essential point for the proper use of QGIS software is the reference coordinate system used for the project. Indeed, it must be adapted to the area studied and is specific to it. First, the course defines what a reference coordinate system is **(Figure 30)**.



Figure 30 : Slide 12 of course 3, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

Then, it shows the path to follow in order to define the coordinate system for each of the layers of the project (Figure 31).



Figure 31 : Slide 13 of course 3, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

Open data is data that is freely accessible, reusable and redistributable by everyone. These data may be provided by public or private sources. In the sixth part of the third course, open data is defined and some sites where it is possible to download data for free are cited **(Figure 32).**

6. Open Data (1/4)	FuseGi
 Organizations that publish standards for geographic information play a specific role in example: International Organization for Standardization (ISO): creates international standard: 	
ISO 19115:2003 has been revised by ISO 19115-1:2014 concerning Geographic Infor defines the scheme required for describing geographic information and services. It p identification, the extent, the quality, the spatial and temporal scheme, spatial refer geographic data (<u>https://www.iso.org/standard/26020.html</u>). Though ISO 19115 is applicable to digital data, its principles can be extended to many forms of geographic data such as maps, charts and textual documents as well as non-geographic data.	provides information about the ence and distribution of digital
 European Committee for Standardization (CEN): covers European interoperability Information. 	
Open Geospatial Consortium (OGC): develops standards for geographic data, e.g. Si	imple feature, GML, KML.
 The European directive INSPIRE (2007/2/EC) is responsible for geospatial environm activities that have an impact on the environment. 	ental infrastructure and other
FuseGi advancing GIS professional skills	14
6. Open Data (2/4)	FuseGi Erasmus+
 Geospatial data may be available from other sources: In different model types (raster or vector models), As files in a wide range of managed formats (shapefiles), From online sources, As a result of a voluntary geographic information collection initiative (VGI-Voluntee) 	red Geographic Information).
 Users and researchers can also find data through open sources. "Open data" can be restrictive terms of ownership. 	be used free of charge or with
 Web sites offered geospatial data are the following: Global Self-consistent Hierarchical High-Resolution Shoreline (GSHHS), Natural Earth: public domain chartography data http://www.naturalearthdata.co 1:50.000.000, 1:110.000.000), European Environment Agency http://www.naturalearthdata.co 1:50.000.000, 1:110.000.000), European Environment Agency http://www.naturalearthdata.co 1:50.000.000, 1:110.000.000), European Environment Agency http://www.eea.Europe.eu/, Advanced Spaceborne Thermal Emission and Reflection Radiometer (ASTER), Esri Open Data Hub https://http://www.openstreetmap.org/#map=7/38.359/23.810, Geotopo30 https://http://dtp.couse.gov/GTOPO30. 	om (scales used: 1:10.000.000,
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills	15

Figure 32 : Slides 14 and 15 of course 3, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

Next, the course shows how to integrate the downloaded data into the QGIS software (Figure 33).

6. Open Data / inpu	it (3/4)				tuseGi	Erasmus
Data in QGIS are ac raster data, shapefil In QGIS: Main Tool I or In QGIS: Main Tool I	Bar>Layer>Add Layer.	Add vector layer: .dxf, shapefiles, .kml. dd raster layer: nages, .jpg or ff files.	scanned ma	ps or results of a		
FuseGI advancing GIS professional	skills				3	16

Figure 33 : Slide 16 of course 3, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

This course also allows you to understand and use the browser and layer panels available in QGIS (Figure 34).

to - ODS The large larg		View>Panels>Browser & Layers.	
X Bandrah One Same Description One Same One Description One One Description One One Description One One Description Description One Description Description One Description Description One Mark Description One Mark One Mark	browser panel direct accessible in the ma workspace.		
Held Hayen One Solite Down Solites Layen Mel Solites Layen Held Solites Layen Held Solites Layen Held Solites Layen Held Solites Layen Med Downerd Layen Free Solite Solite	Advent Deping	Open → Open →	Interruption
Togen Al Super May (Super May (Su	Comportangent has Comportangent has Comportangent has Comportangent has Comportangent has Comportangent Comportangent Comportangent Comportangent Comportangent Comportangent	Open the layer Styling panel T Filter legend by map Add group T Filter legend by map Manage map themes Remove layer/group	content

Figure 34 : Slide 17 of course 3, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

This third course is also useful for learning the basics of using QGIS, such as creating layers, whether for drawing lines, points, or polygons (Figure 35).

7. Create layers (1/2)	FuseGi
 In a GIS project geospatial data are represented thro open data in various web sources or can be created b 	ough different kind of layers. Layers may be found and studies as y users.
 In order to create layers: Main tool bar>Layer>Create New Shapefile Layer will take them to the following w 	Layer. Most common layer forms used are shapefiles. Clicking on indow.
Q Tested Pays-1 Note Size Diele Regin, Neur Mark, State, State	Charlestran
Notice Altere type felderation Hitte hypers felderation	
Layers created by the following steps do not contain any information. Users should digitize the	Tente tente Tenne - Lana - Lanaka - Tennes
reported elements. The digitization process will be	
represented in the next lesson.	
	6
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills	18
7. Create layers (2/2)	Erasmus
C the Spatian Sector	in Latin characters. The storage path is also
View Ward Control of C	selected. Choose the appropriate coordinate system referring the study area.
Anne V Inding Tar Anna S	
A regist in the second	Below, the information of the elements that the shapefile will contain is given. This
Shapefiles may be points (hospitals, museums etc.), lines (roads, rivers, etc.) or polygons	In other states Information is entered by the Information is entered by the User and displayed through the attribute tables.
(lakes, areas o f interest). The Length of characters	e.g. Road name text
appropriate geometry is	6 Road length number
selected depending to the lements to be digitized.	Topo regue number
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills	19

Figure 35 : Slides 18 and 19 of course 3, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

Finally, the last slide of this third course shows how to save and save the project (Figure 36).

and elements of your present work for future processing. The ext QGIS, the default is to save using a compressed format with the .q	
Use Latin characters for the file names and avoid spaces.	
Orienter Old Orienter Old Mar Upo - Levy - Servey - Depart Network - Deva Deva Orienter Old Operation Operation Operation Operation <th>Dime Choice Dime Dime Choice Dime Dim Dim Dime</th>	Dime Choice Dime Dime Choice Dime Dim Dim Dime
Important Control Cont	Charles C

Figure 36 : Slide 20 of course 3, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

3.4 Course 4: Georeferencing, Scanning and Editing Tools

This fourth course allows to continue **deepen the mastery of QGIS software**. Indeed, we can find in it the different steps to follow to carry out the **georeferencing process, the creation of layers** or those of correcting **the geometry of** a layer (Figure 37).

Contents	FuseGi Erasmus+
 Geometric Correction Georeference process Creating layers Distribution 	
 4. Digitization 5. Editor/ Attributes 6. Symbology 7. Practice 	
7. Practice	

Figure 37 : Course outline 4, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

After learning in the previous course how to create layers, it is important to know the editing tools, georeferencing as well as scanning. This is why the course begins by defining the usefulness and purpose of the geometric correction of photographic data made in QGIS (Figure 38).



Figure 38 : Slides 6 and 7 of course 4, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

The georeferencing process is an indispensable process for adding photographs to GIS projects (Figure 39).



Figure 39 : Slide 8 of course 4, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

This process uses files in GeoPDF or GeoTiff formats, the tool used to perform georeferencing is already included in QGIS (Figure 40).

2. Georeference process (2/8)	FuseGi Erasmus
-	Control points with known coordinates (x,y).
 GeoPDF and GeoTiff are examples of georeferenced file f Georeferencing images in their right position allows bas and determine any other spatial information. 	x formats. sic map analysis to be done, to calculate distances and areas
FuseOI advancing OIS professional skills	9
2. Georeference process (3/8)	FuseGi
which is divided into two sections.	menu>Raster>Georeferencer. Then a separate window opens,
and a set of the set o	The top section where the images are displaying. The bottom section where the control points will appear.
File>Open Raster. Next, the user must click on GCP	steps. The images (or scanned maps) are firstly imported by is and enter their coordinates manually and choose the tings. Finally, <i>File>Start Georeferencing</i> . The georeferenced bace.
FuseOI advancing GIS professional skills	10

Figure 40 : Slides 9 and 10 of course 4, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

Then, instructions on how to use the "georeferencing" tool are given in the slides "Georeference process 4/8" and "Georeference process 5/8". The first case of georeferencing a photograph is when a map and known coordinates are used. It is important to choose the type of transformation algorithm to georeference the image (Figure 41).

10 a	(4/8)	Erasm
1. <u>Georeference a map</u>	with GCPs of known coordinates.	
	Bar>File>Open Raster and import the image of interest from your bi mage from any software using geospatial information.	owser. This could be a scanned map
	section of the window. Make sure the 🔀 Add Point button is sele	cted.
	first reference point and enter the corresponding coordinates manu as many reference points as you like but it is not recommended.	ally. Click OK and they will appear ir
	Annual State of the Annual	
Sheri Karjannika Maria Larina Maria Sangara (Mandi Sangara Maria Larina Maria Sangara) Maria Mar		When dealing with a flat-surface mage, 2 to 3 reference points should be sufficient. Reference areas near the edges of the image are often preferred.
this window opens automatically in order		
to add known X,Y.	Control Points Table]
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills	Section Section 100 Contraction Contraction Contraction	
		11
Georeference process	(5/8) Ground Control Points to the raster image, you should define t	FuseGi Erasn
Georeference process • After you have added the of georeferencing process.		FuseGi Erasn
Georeference process • After you have added the 6		FuseGi Erasm he transformation settings for the type and quality of input data and the
Georeference process • After you have added the of georeferencing process.	Ground Control Points to the raster image, you should define t	FuseGiven the transformation settings for the transformation settings for the type and quality of input data and the to to the final result.
Georeference process	 Ground Control Points to the raster image, you should define t The choice of transformation algorithm is dependent on the noumber of geometric distortion that you are willing to introduin the two are willing to introduing the two are will be twill be two are will be two are will be tw	type and quality of input data and the te to the final result. It is used to create a world file. At to the Polynomial 1.3 3 GCPs are required. The Polynomial 3 3 GCPs are required. The Polynomial 2.3 3 GCPs are required. The Polynomial 3
Georeference process	 The choice of transformation algorithm is dependent on the noumber of geometric distortion that you are willing to introdue. The Linear algorithm does not actually transform the raster pixe least 2 GCPs are needed. The Helmert transformation allows good quality local map or an orthorectified aerial image. At least algorithms need at least 6 GCPs. The Projective algorithm rate qual for georeferencing angled phototographs. The Thin Prote Sg duraged, deformed or otherwise slightly inaccurate maps or point or the state of the slightly inaccurate maps or point. QGIS allows five different resampling methods. Choosing the slight and the slightly inaccurate maps or point. 	type and quality of input data and the to the final result. the transformation settings for the to the final result. the and it is used to create a world file. At to tate on the final result. the and it is used to create a world file. At to tate on the final result. the and it is used to create a world file. At to tate on the final result. the set of the final result. The set of the set of the file of the
Georeference process	 Ground Control Points to the raster image, you should define the normber of geometric distortion that you are willing to introduin the transformation algorithm is dependent on the normber of geometric distortion that you are willing to introduin the transformation allows: The Linear algorithm does not actually transform the raster pixel least 2 GCPs are needed. The Helmert transformation allows: no equiparticle algorithms is used to georeference data cartograms and at least algorithms is used to georeference data cartograms and at least algorithms is used to georeference data cartograms and at least algorithms is used to georeference data cartograms. The Thin Polet Sp damaged, deformed or otherwise slightly inaccurate maps or pc QGIS allows five different resampling methods. Choosing the statistics of the raster. As default a new output raster will be created in the same extension_modified. If you wish to continue working with this image click the last op in the main QGIS workspace. 	Ersen the transformation settings for the type and quality of input data and the te to the final result. Is and it is used to create a world file. At totation and it is useful if your rater is st 2 GCPs are needed. The Polynomial 2-3 GCPs are needed. The Polynomial 2-3 tres a minimum of 4 GCPs and it is used line is most useful for georeferencing into its most useful photos. the Nearest Neighbor does not change folder of the original image with the
Georeference process	 Ground Control Points to the raster image, you should define the normber of geometric distortion that you are willing to introduin the transformation algorithm is dependent on the normber of geometric distortion that you are willing to introduin the transformation allows: The Linear algorithm does not actually transform the raster pixel least 2 GCPs are needed. The Helmert transformation allows: no equiparticle algorithms is used to georeference data cartograms and at least algorithms is used to georeference data cartograms and at least algorithms is used to georeference data cartograms and at least algorithms is used to georeference data cartograms. The Thin Polet Sp damaged, deformed or otherwise slightly inaccurate maps or pc QGIS allows five different resampling methods. Choosing the statistics of the raster. As default a new output raster will be created in the same extension_modified. If you wish to continue working with this image click the last op in the main QGIS workspace. 	Ersen the transformation settings for the type and quality of input data and the te to the final result. Is and it is used to create a world file. At totation and it is useful if your rater is st 2 GCPs are needed. The Polynomial 2-3 GCPs are needed. The Polynomial 2-3 tres a minimum of 4 GCPs and it is used line is most useful for georeferencing into its most useful photos. the Nearest Neighbor does not change folder of the original image with the

Figure 41 : Slides 11 and 12 of course 4, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

In case the coordinates of the photo to be georeferenced are known from Google Earth, the process is a little different **(Figure 42).**

2. Georeference process (7	/8)	FuseGi Erasmus+
 An another way to georefere platform that enables analyza 	nce an image in QGIS u tion to satellite images o	nates from open software Google Earth. ses Google Earth software. Google Earth is a geospatial analysis f the planet and is available for free. n coordinates according to the World Geodetic System (WGS84).
Image taken from the Add Placemark tool	Latitude Longitude 39.624275 20.863215° 39.673387° 20.856032° 39.691272° 20.848147° 39.659155° 20.93364°	Image: state stat
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills		14

Figure 42 : Slide 14 of course 4, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

In the latter case, the photo to be georeferenced is based on the use of an additional map such as Google Street View. The purpose of these steps is to place points on the image to be georeferenced as well as on the map at the samepoints chosen at the samepoints. The more points there are, the more accurate the georeferencing is **(Figure 43)**.



Figure 43 : Slide 15 of course 4, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

Next, the course provides a reminder of how to use the layer creation tool (Figure 44).

Creating	g layers (1/2)		Fused	Eras
			of layers. QGIS provides tools to import and	expor
layers ir	n different kind of formats	*		
			cratch or existing layers. QGIS allows you to oose Main Tool Bar>Layer>Create Layer.	creat
	Q United Payed - QIG	or before hid that because the		
	Regel (in yes too (integel) (integel)	CB-L B. C. C. B. C.	Type of layers that QGIS allows you to create.	
	Torbed Layer and Drages. Address Layer Datases Piles.	 V, Sev Payetik Lon. J, Sev Igatak te Lon. B. Sev Tenamer London Lon. 		
	Annual Concentration	Minister Interlayer		- 11
	R GOY Sector	C Damage as da	Layer	
To creat	te a new Shapefile, choo	se the right type of geometry (bet	ween point, info.	
line, po	lygon) and the proper Co	ordinate Reference System. Add th	e attributes	
of each	spatial element by giving	a name and type, click on the Ad	d to filed list	
button.				
		n required, provide a name for th		
		shp extension. The new layer will	be added to	-
the map	o in order to digitize its th	e spatial elements.		-
eGl advancin	ng GIS professional skills		1	6
				501
reating	g layers (2/2)		FuseGi	
			See Aut	Eras
and state				
			okg extension. GeoPackage is a standard OG	c dat
package	e that can store different t	ypes of spatial data. Several layers	can be saved in just one GeoPackage.	
OGIS al	so supports the use of a	file format called SpatiaLite that i	s lightweight. Choose Create Layer>New Spa	tiaLit
			o create a new one. Add a name, define the	
			ttributes and QGIS will automatically add th	
	the legend.			
			In order to avoid losing a	iny
		memory layers, meaning that they		
		hen QGIS is closed. They are used		
store fe	atures during geoprocess	ing operations.	layers, you can save the	
	and former and a second second	the CDC shale flat and set of	layers to any vector form	
		the GPS plugin first and activate	the GPS Tools that QGIS can support	1
	ua.	Leon (23		
GPX lay		Ligen (2) (4) (4) (4) (5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (5) (5	- point	
	line 🖡	V Monitoring Stations		
	line 👡	✓ ● Monitoring Stations ✓ — Hydrography		
	line 🖡	V Monitoring Stations	polygons	
	line 👞	✓ Monitoring Stations ✓ Hydrography ✓ Land uses	+ polygons	
checkbo	us G5 professional skills	✓ Monitoring Stations ✓ Hydrography ✓ Land uses		7

Figure 44 : Slides 16 and 17 of course 4, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

These processes are essential for a good use of the software and a mastery of GIS. This course also teaches how to scan, symbology, edit and use attributes. In addition, an exercise to apply the concepts learned is available at the end of this course. This course gives us many examples and explanations of the tools that can be used with the QGIS software **(Figure 45)**.

	<i>iew>Toolbars</i> and click ok the	digitiza			Togle Selected Lyes Independently	 ✓ Advanced Digitizing Toolbar ✓ Attributes Toolbar ✓ Data Source Manager Toolbar
Øsing t	Current edits		Toggle Editing		Toggie Full Screen Mode F11 Toggie Full Screen Mode F11 Toggie Fund Yoshility Chri-Tab Toggie Map Coly Chri-Shith - Tab	Ostabuse Toolbar Opticing inclusion Vielp Toolbar Label Toolbar Manage Layers Toolbar
**	Add Feature: Capture Point	6	Add Feature: Capture Line	1.1		 ✓ Map Navigation Toolbar ✓ Plugins Toolbar ✓ Project Toolbar ✓ Raster Toolbar
*	Add Feature: Capture Polygon	7	Move Feature		(6 * Q * 48 * 18 * Q * ∥	 ✓ Selection Toolbar ✓ Shape Digitizing Toolbar ✓ Snapping Toolbar ✓ Vector Toolbar
ľ.	Add Circular String	6	Add Circular String by Radius	•	Editing starts by Toggle Editing option buttons will become a	choosing the
1	Nade Tool		Delete Selected			
~	Cut Features		Copy Features		editing process starts.	
6	Paste Features		Save layer Edits	•	You can still zoom or canvas while using any tools.	

Figure 45 : Slide 18 of course 4, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.
Then, the course defines and allows the use of tools allowing the digitization of data and new characteristics useful to the GIS project (Figure 46).

4. Digitization (2/	3)				FuseGi when the set of	Erasmus+
• Depending on the	e type of feature to be dig	tized y	ou can choose be	tween	:	
	Add point feature	V ₀	All line feature	*	Add polygon feature	
You will notice that	at clicking on different lay	ers (poi	ints, lines or polyg	ons) a	ctivates different digitizatio	on tools.
for each addition		ire for	linear geometrie:	. Whe	ibutes (name, type, <u>etc</u>). Ke en you have finished adding desirable features.	
• The attribute wind	dow will automatically ap	oear in	order to enter th	e infor	mation for the new feature	
	or the digitization of a road nd enter attributes such a		and the second state of the second state and the	-	itize the different highways	s with tools related
 Right-click on a la values. 	ayer>Open Attribute Table	. In thi	s window there a	re use	ful editing tools between a	ttributes and their
FuseGI advancing GIS professio	onal skills					19

Figure 46 : Slide 19 of course 4, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

Then, two videos are available in the slideshow to illustrate the digitization of the data and facilitate the understanding of the manipulations to be carried out (Figure 47).



Figure 47 : Slide 20 of course 4, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

Each of the data that is added to the project or created for it has visible data in the layer parameters or in the attribute table. In addition, it is possible to modify, add or remove this data (Figure 48).



Figure 48 : Slides 21 and 22 of course 4, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

It is also possible to customize the layers and the style of these, whether they are points, lines or polygons (Figure 49).

6. Symbology (1/2)	FuseCi Erasmus+
QGIS offers a dynamic representation of the spatial data. Right sym use maps.	bology is essential to produce functional and easy to
 QGIS software provides a large library of colors and symbols to create symbology right click on the layer to be edit Layer Properties>Symbology 	
 Layer's display (points, lines, polygons) based on the choice of colo width or line style. 	r, symbol,
 In cartography there are specific instructions for the use, size an creation of symbols. 	d general
> Point Symbols	
When dealing with points, users have the option of choosing between symbols and colors of the adjacent image. QGIS also provides special symbols of various toponyms. <i>Apply</i> and then click <i>OK</i> to save your edits.	
FuseGLadvancing GIS professional skills	23
	10 00 7
6. Symbology (2/2)	Erasmus+
> Line Symbols	
There are three basic steps. Style, Color, Width.	Width given in mm
 The choice of color and line style depends on the respective spatial data to be represented. Displaying data with symbols must follow a logical continuity. 	Line styles
 For example in the representation of the hydrographic network streams should be displayed with lower width lines than the main river. Also, in the representation of road network, each category of roads must appear with a different color or line thickness in 	
order to be visible.	
Polygon Symbols	
 Polygons represent specific land surfaces (water bodies, land uses, etc). A useful tool for representing polygons in addition to outline style and fill color is the transparency rate to be selected. 	
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills	24

Figure 49 : Slides 23 and 24 of course 4, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

In order to better understand all the tools described in the course, an exercise is available (Figure 50).



Figure 50 : Slide 25 of course 4, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

3.5 Course 5: Spatial Analysis

This fifth course aims to **explain spatial analysis tools** as well as **spatial queries with location selection** and **basic statistics (Figure 51).** It allows you to learn more about buffer zones as well as to master other layer processing tools such as union, clip, intersection tools for example.

Contents	Fusces di primi an	Erasmus+
1. Spatial Analysis		
2. Spatial Analysis Tools		
3. Basics statistics / Select by Location / Spatial Query		
4. Buffer Zones		
5. Intersect / Union / Clip		
6. More		
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills		

Figure 51 : Course outline 5, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

First, we find in the course a definition of spatial analyses as well as an overview of the type of domain that can use these analyses (Figure 52).



Figure 52 : Slide 6 of course 5, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

The course provides an understanding of the conditions under which spatial analyses are carried out **(Figure 53).**

		Erasmus+
 Types of spatial analysis optimization and hypother 		ents, transformations, descriptive summaries,
	neasuring distances and shapes, setting ro ects, events and places via referring their loca	utes and tracking transportations, establishing tions to geographical positions.
 It includes all of the trans information. 	sformations and methods that can be applied	ed to geographic data to turn them into useful
Methods of spatial analysi	is can be either very simple or very sophistica	ated.
Through spatial analysis, information by applying a		independent sources and derive new sets of
 Organizations that use spa kinds, universities, etc. 	atial analysis in their work are wide ranging	: local and state governments, businesses of all
	e characteristics of places and the relations h to locate the spatial phenomena under stur	hips between them and requires an underlying dy.
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills		7
1. Spatial Analysis (3/3)	Spatial Anal	
1. Spatial Analysis (3/3)	Spatial Anal	
Hardware		lysis / GIS Process Users
GIS applications are comp	Software Data	Ilysis / GIS Process Users Is and visualization of spatial data. te interactive queries, store and edit spatial and
GIS applications are comp non-spatial data, analyze s	Software Data ly used free open source software for analysi uter-based tools that allow the user to creat spatial information output and presenting the	Ilysis / GIS Process Users Is and visualization of spatial data. te interactive queries, store and edit spatial and
QGIS is the most common OGIS is the most common GIS applications are comp non-spatial data, analyze s Spatial analysis is playing theoretical constructs.	Software Data by used free open source software for analysi uter-based tools that allow the user to creat spatial information output and presenting the spatial information coutput and presenting the	Process Users is and visualization of spatial data. te interactive queries, store and edit spatial and em as maps. ent, hypothesis development and validation of ospatial data in broader sections of the private

Figure 53 : Slides 7 and 8 of course 5, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

The next slide defines spatial analysis tools and explains what thesetools can do, such as analyzing patterns or modeling spatial relationships (Figure 54).

2. Sp	patial Analysis Tools (1/2)	Erasmus+
•	The last decades there was an increasing demand for systems that "do something" other than display map organize data. Researchers and GIS developers aimed to introduce a mean of integrating spatial analysis wit technology.	AND THE REAL PROPERTY OF THE R
•	Due to the growing demand for spatial analysis tools, new software packages were developed and new tools integrated into the existing ones.	were
•	Spatial analysis deals with two distinct types of information. One concerns the attributes of spatial objects, includes measures such as area, population etc. The other one concerns location information about the sobjects.	
•	The spatial objects concerned in most analyses are polygons which correspond to measurement zones and stat reporting areas.	tistical
•	There are four core analytical toolsets: measuring geographic distributions, analyzing patterns, mapping cluster modeling spatial relationships.	rs and
•	Tools to perform spatial analysis have been extended over the years to include geostatistical techniques, analysis, analytical methods for business, 3D analysis and network analytics.	raster
Fuse	rGI advancing GIS professional skills	9

Figure 54 : Slide 9 of course 5, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

In the course, 6 spatial analysis tools are mentioned such as QGIS, GRASS GIS or Google Earth (Figure 55).

Package		Website	Main Features	
QGIS	QCIS	https://qgis.org/en/site/	Easy to use, ability to expand functionality with Python plugins.	
GRASS	GRASS	https://grass.osgeo.org/	Extensive set of GIS tools for both raster and vector data.	
Google Eart	. Google earth	https://earth.google.com/web/@0, 0,0a,22251752.77375655d,35y,0h, 0t,0r	Easy to use, dynamic graphics, historical maps.	
Fragstats	Fragstats 4.2	http://www.umass.edu/landeco/re search/fragstats/fragstats.html	Area, edge metrics. Shape metrics and fragmentation.	
SAGA		http://www.saga- gis.org/en/index.html	Grid analysis, Terrain analysis, hydrology simulation.	
GeoDaSpac	e GeoDa	https://geodacenter.github.io/	Advanced spatial models for cross section.	

Figure 55 : Slide 10 of course 5, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

Basic statistics are a method defined in the course since it is very often used to carry out research concerning scale, geostatistics or classifications (Figure 56).

3. Basics statistics / Select by Location / Spatial Query (1/4)	Erasmus+
Basic statistics	
Spatial statistics allows you to analyze and understand what is going on in given vector dataset.	
• From GIS dictionary spatial statistics are defined as "the field of study statistical methods that use relationships (such as distance, area, volume, length, height and/or other spatial characteristics of dat	
• The spatial statistical methods in current use and upon which research is continuing include: sp pattern analysis, scale and zoning, geostatistics, classification, spatial sampling and spatial econometri	777
• The effect of the new technology on spatial statistical analysis has led to a broadening of the proc testing.	ess of hypothesis
BRATERY HOURS, problems BRATERY HOURS, BRATERY HOUR	REPORT results with graphics REPORT results: wide array of graphics, maps and visualization techniques
Traditional and 6is approach of spatial statistics analysis Fig. 1 of Getts, A (1999). Spatial statistics. Geographical information systems, 1, 239-251.	
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills	11

Figure 56 : Slide 11 of course 5, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

The course allows to know the path to the basic statistical analysis tool, available in the QGIS software **(Figure 57).**

Basic statist	ics		
			Toolbar>Vector>Analysis Basic Statistics for fields
Image Image <th< th=""><th>By clicking on the Σ icon, a new panel will pop up. Users should specify the layer under study as the source and select the right value in the field combo box. This is the field they will calculate statistics for. The left statistics panel will be automatically updated with the calculated statistics (sum, mean, median, range etc.)</th><th>And and the State (State (State</th><th></th></th<>	By clicking on the Σ icon, a new panel will pop up. Users should specify the layer under study as the source and select the right value in the field combo box. This is the field they will calculate statistics for. The left statistics panel will be automatically updated with the calculated statistics (sum, mean, median, range etc.)	And and the State (State	

Figure 57 : Slide 12 of course 5, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

The course defines and shows the path of the "select by location" tool. In addition, an example of use illustrates the slide which facilitates understanding **(Figure 58).**

3. Basics statistics / Select by Location / Spatial Query (3/4)	FuseGi
 Select by location The Select by Location tool allows you to select features based on their location relative to features in another layer. The selection methods are the same as in the Select by Attribute dialog box. Go to the Main Toolbar>Vector>Research Tools>Select by Location. Using this tool allows you to 	e deving here deving here Data Management here Second Pacina Advances Second
 specific geographical area. If you want to select buildings with two floors (attribute) in a polygon of a city, use Select by Location tool. 	
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills	13

Figure 58 : Slide 13 of course 5, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

Finally, a final spatial analysis tool is presented, the "spatial query" tool (Figure 59).

3. Basics statistics / Select by Location / Spatial Query (4/4)	Erasmus+
> Spatial Query	
 Spatial queries are come to many types of GIS analysis. Spatial queries allows you to select features in a la spatial relationships with features from another layer. 	ayer by their
• The Spatial Query plugin allows you to make a spatial query in a target layer with reference to anothe functionality is based on the GEOS library and depends on the selected source feature layer.	r layer. The
Possible operators are: Contains, Equal, Overlap, Crosses, Intersects, Touches, Within.	
 Examples of spatial queries: features that intersect with other features, features within other features (within a forest area), features with a distance from another area (buildings 20 meters from main roads, ind 10 km from natura areas, schools 10 meters from bus stations), etc. Select the buildings in a perimeter of 50 meters: 	
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills	14

Figure 59 : Slide 14 of course 5, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

The following slides are devoted to the definition and use of the "buffer" tool (Figure 60).



Figure 60 : Slide 15 of course 5, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

It is possible to create buffer zones of different diameters (Figure 61).

4. Buffer Zones (2/3)	Erasmus+
Buffers around polylines, such as road network, do not have to be on both sides o the left side or the right side of the line feature.	f the lines. Users can choose either
 Most often buffers are measured in uniform distance. A buffer based on different feature can also have more than one buffer zone. For example, studying land agriculture areas, artificial surfaces or wetlands) around a water body at 50, 100 or and better results. 	uses changes (natural vegetation,
Buffering is an important tool to determine the area covered within a specific location.	Buffer zone of 500 meters around the perimeter of a lake.
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills	16

Figure 61 : Slide 16 of course 5, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

The path to the "buffer" tool is described in the fifth course. An example of the use of the tool is also available and provides a better understanding of the use of this tool **(Figure 62).**

created.	create a bu In order to Main Toolb Choose the vector layer under study. Choose the distance of the buffer zone to be	Iffer zone inward from a create a buffer zone aro ar>Vector>Geoprocessin	polygon boundary. und a feature go to th g Tools>Buffer.	d outward from a polygon bour	Geoprocessing tools is a set of tools for and related data and performing spatial operations.
	created.	(Down start for day on the start of the star	· Gent. /		

Figure 62 : Slide 17 of course 5, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

Other tools described in this course include the "intersection", "union" and "cut" tools. The "intersection" tool is used to extract the features superimposedbytwo layers **(Figure 63)**.

5. Intersection / Union / C	lip (1/4)		Erasmus
> Intersection			
	o exclude the area that is not es from the input layer and th er both layers' features.		
			X Binnate Selected Polygons.
	Pearam into into into into into into into into	Intersection This dynamic statis for unitaryong particular the dynamic statis in the unitaryong particular the statistic formation are assigned for the statistic formation are assigned to the statistic statistic statistic statistics the based and Dweller levels.	One layer containing features to be combined. Second layer containing the features to be combined.
	Distanciale Distanciale provers (and Constructions) (and Construction		Where to save the intersection layer. Can be saved to file, a temporary file or a

Figure 63 : Slide 18 of course 5, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

The "union" tool verifies overlaps between two-layer entities and creates separate entities for overlapping and non-overlapping parts (Figure 64).

. Intersection / Union / Clip (2/4)	X	FuseGi
> Union		
Union tool allows to merge two layers i input features boundaries and attribute		rom both input layers are copied. It maintains all
• Go to Main Toolbar>Vector>Geoproces	sing Tools>Union.	The second secon
Torm (Date (Dat Moh Paymen) (Dat) Conversity (Data) If Moh. Generative (Data) If Con. Second (Data) If Con. Second (Data) If Con. Second (Data) If Con. Second (Data) If Con. Interactive (Data) If Const Mat. Interactive (Data) Interactive (Data) Interactive (Data) Interactive (Data) Interactive (Data) Interactive (Data)	1. Choose the two inpu 2. Choose the path to soutput layer, 3. Run the process.	reme Transmission of the second sec
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills		P6 3 000 19

Figure 64 : Slide 19 of course 5, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

The "cut" tool extracts the common parts between two layers by creating a new vector layer **(Figure 65).**



Figure 65 : Slides 20 and 21 of course 5, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

3.6 Course 6: Cartography

The sixth course teaches us the **principle of cartography**, but also how to **create our own maps using the QGIS software (Figure 66).** The mapping tool allows you to export the layers present in the project into data that can feed a map. This course teaches us how to change the symbols and colors of the map, create the legends and how to export the document.



Figure 66 : Course outline 6, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

This course begins with the basics and principles of cartography (Figure 67).



Figure 67 : Slide 6 of course 6, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

The following slides are slow reminders and define the principles of mapping (Figure 68).

1. Principles of Cartography (2/4)	Erasmus+
Cartography is closely related to Geography, since maps are one of the mai geographical data.	in means of presentation and study
 GIS applications and GIS software aim to represent geospatial data and results to closely related to GIS too. 	through maps, so Cartography can be
• Maps are models that represent various elements from the real world on a piece	of paper.
 Cartographic principles are laid out to guide GIS users through the process of useful maps for print and display. 	transforming GIS data into attractive,
 In cartography there is difference between principles and rules contribute to the a good outcome like the principles that must be followed. 	design process. Rules can't guarantee
 Statements of cartographic design: The purpose of design is to focus the attention of the user. 	
 The principles of cartographic design are timeless, the results are not. The rules of cartographic design can be taught and be learnt, principles and 	concepts have to be acquired.
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills	7
1. Principles of Cartography (3/4)	FuseGi Erasmus+
> The five (5) principles of map design (as written from the British Cartographic Soc	iety Design Group):
 Concept before compilation Without a grasp of concept, the whole of the design process is negated. O or content feature will be included which does not fit it. Design the whole before the part. Design comes in two stages, concept an Design once, devise and design again. User first, user last. What does the user want from this map? What can the other the part. 	nd parameters and detail in execution.
 Hierarchy with harmony Important things must look important and the most important thing should I Harmony is subliminal. Successful harmony leads to repose. Perfect harm bloom. 	
 Simplicity from sacrifice Great design tends towards simplicity. It's not what you put in that makes a The map design stage is complete when you take nothing else out. Content may determine scale or scale may determine content and each determine 	
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills	8
1. Principles of Cartography (4/4)	Erasmus+
 4. Maximum information at minimum cost How much information can be gained from this map, at a glance. Functio functional. The spark which makes a map special often only comes when the map is control of the spark which makes a map special often only comes when the map is control of the spark which makes a map special often only comes when the map is control of the spark which makes a map special often only comes when the map is control of the spark which makes a map special often only comes when the map is control of the spark which makes a map special often only comes when the map is control of the spark which makes a map special often only comes when the map is control of the spark which makes a map special often only comes when the map is control of the spark which makes a map special often only comes when the map is control of the spark which makes a map special often only comes when the map is control of the spark which makes a map special often only comes when the map is control of the spark which makes a map special often only comes when the map is control of the spark which makes a map special often only comes when the map is control of the spark which makes a map special often only comes when the map is control of the spark which makes a map special often only comes when the map is control often only comes when the map is control often only comes when the map is control often on the spark which makes a map special often on the spark which makes a map special often on the spark which makes a map special often on the spark which makes a map special often on the spark which makes a map special often on the spark which makes a map special often on the spark which makes a map special often on the spark which makes a map special often on the spark which makes a map special often on the spark which makes a map special often on the spark which makes a map special often on the spark which makes a map special often on the spark which makes a map special often on the spark which makes a	
5. Engage the emotion to engage the understanding	
 Design with emotion to engage the emotion. Only by feeling what the user i Designers use cartographic fictions, cartographic impressions, cartographic i Good design is a result of the tension between the environment and the deprinciples of aesthetics are not those of design. 	illusions to make a map.
Cartographers are not just prettying maps up.	
The philosophy is simple:	
 Beauty (aesthetics) focuses the attention, Focusing the attention is the purpose of map design and User first, user last. 	
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills	9

Figure 68 : Slides 7, 8 and 9 of course 6, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

Next, the course shows us the basic functions of a map and what types of information can be found in a map (Figure 69).



Figure 69 : Slide 10 of course 6, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

In addition, the course indicates what types of maps can be represented using GIS (Figure 70).



Figure 70 : Slide 11 of course 6, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

After processing the data and the different layers, it is possible thanks to the QGIS software to create cartographic representations. These map representations follow 5 design principles presented in the next slide (Figure 71).



Figure 71 : Slide 12 of course 6, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

It is possible to add all the basic elements of a map such as the title, the arrow indicating north, the scale bar, the legend and the map itself (Figure 72).



Figure 72 : Slide 13 of course 6, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

All of these items listed above are available in the QGIS mapping workspace (Figure 73).

3. Map Layout (3/5)		FuseGi starcing C5 protestant	्र	Erasmus
QGIS is an open source GIS software enab and compose printable maps.	ling the user to visualize, manage,	edit, analyze data	"Unerified Project - QGIS Topol Edit View Layer Se New New from Terrolate	ttings <u>P</u> lugins V CMI-N
 QGIS has a tool called <i>Print Layout</i> (Main take GIS layers and package them to create essential map elements that can be printed 	maps. It allows the creation of ma		Cons. Open From Open Secont Close Seve Seve Seve Se- Seve To Revot	Cal+0 Cal+5 Cal+Sult+5
La Add Map	1		Properties Snapping Options Import/Export	Csil-Sult-P
Add Picture			Layout Manager Layout Manager Layouts Exit COIS	CHI+Q
Add Title	Main Workspace	and Servers (Sec)		
Add Legend	of maps creation in QGIS	· manufact		
Add Scale Bar	in Quis			
Add North Arrow		· Sectors		
_	Allow yet	anala Antonio Antonio		
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills				14

Figure 73 : Slide 14 of course 6, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

It is possible to change the titles of the legend and the color and appearance of the symbols (Figure 74).

Laynut Tam Properties Rem Properties Label		10.8	2 Sant To See Sector			
Title of the Hep	Write the title. Click here in order	to	na nagati targan V targan V targan V targan	i i tennerat Norme	The elements on the map' l displayed here.	egend are
Render as HTM4.				CR.24 med freet provestig, resulting	Legend Permore Q.C22_08 Closed 131 132 142 231 242 242 243 243	
Hardwood alignment Left Conter Instal alignment • Top Middle	Right * Justife Ballan		Otra	e dan kuli bila ng i dan kuli unit da kulor Tau funaling	301 323 524 411 532	

Figure 74 : Slide 15 of course 6, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

In addition, elements such as the arrow indicating north or the scale bar are customizable (Figure 75).

3	Layes The Properties Guilas Taxis Frequencies Patane		4 Level 201 Such State	ropertes Guelles		
	TrG maps Taster maps Total maps		w Hain Proof Der Elling Dige Degel	Click he	ere to change un ers, meters etc.)	its
	amonty amore budgework costex		Elith Saite uns Saite uns Saite uns Saite uns Saite uns Saite uns Saite uns		to change scale t.	
	Cumona - Uppts - Li Hage/ge IV/ A-giarsed/lar		* Fast with		-spit 2 40	
	Silve Sameeten	Choose the right symbol to represent the north arrow.	C Pit segue		10.00 mm	
	Ratio note 2mm Recent Top Left	•		Single Box	1 2 km	
	w Image Batalian	N		Double Box	0 1 2 km	
•	The most used nort	h arrow symbol:		Line Ticks Middle	0 1 2 km	

Figure 75 : Slide 16 of course 6, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

In order to have a better visibility of the information on the map, it is possible to customize the symbols used. To do this, go to the "settings" of the layer to modify and open the "symbology" tab **(Figure 76).**



Figure 76 : Slide 17 of course 6, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

In addition, it is possible to categorize information, add information, or remove information (Figure 77).



Figure 77 : Slide 18 of course 6, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

In the course, there are examples of card personalization. Each of the colours represents a different environment such as agricultural land or artificial surfaces (Figure 78).

4. Symbols & Colors (3/4)	FuseGi
Choose the right color.	Land Uses in a perimeter of 500 meters around Lake Panvotis.
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills	19

Figure 78 : Slide 19 of course 6, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

Another example of map customization is available. This time, it is the customization of layers thanks to the "graduated" option in the "symbology" section of the layer parameters that is presented **(Figure 79).**



Figure 79 : Slide 20 of course 6, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

Finally, all cartographic representations can be exported and saved in PDF for example (Figure 80).



Figure 80 : Slide 21 of course 6, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

3.7 Course 7: Grass GIS

The seventh course **introduces the basics for using another** software, **the Grass GIS software**. This is downloaded and installed along with the QGIS software (Figure 81). This course presents us the possible uses of this software, its workspace. Like QGIS software, this software uses raster and vector data; In particular, it allows the processing of images and the processing of public data.



Figure 81 : Course outline 7, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

The seventh course introduces the GRASS GIS software, the follow-up of this course will then allow the user to master the basics of the software to be able to use it in addition to QGIS (Figure 82).



Figure 82 : Slide 6 of course 7, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

The first slides introduce and define the principles for using the GRASS GIS software (Figure 83).

1. About GRASS (2/2)	Fuse Gi
The idea of Open Source software has been around as long as software has bee growing number of Open Source GIS, Web mapping and GPS projects has been	
In February 2006, the Open Source Geospatial Foundation has been created t and collaborative development of Open Source geospatial technologies and dat	
GRASS is a raster/vector GIS combined with integrated image processing and da	ta visualization subsystems.
 For the GRASS users, the license offers various advantages. Full access to the s new features and capabilities developed between the releases. 	ource code, low cost and access to the
 GRASS can be loaded as a plugin by clicking on <i>Plugins>Manage and Install</i> <i>Plugins</i> through QGIS. It may be already downloaded as a shortcut when you download QGIS software. 	Image: Speet Vac
You can either freely download GRASS software from the main GRASS web site: https://grass.osgeo.org/download/ .	A Golden Free of Gold 2015 State Bondet Golden Free Golden F
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills	7

Figure 83 : Slide 7 of course 7, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

It is possible to use the GRASS GIS software in addition to the QGIS software. In addition, GRASS GIS can be used for scientific research or engineering applications (Figure 84).



Figure 84 : Slide 8 of course 7, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

The next slide describes the GRASS GIS application workspace (Figure 85).

2. GRASS workspace (2/4)
> Database: GRASS data is organized on a database which is essentially a dedicated file folder structure.
To create the GRASS database: 1. Find a place on your disk where you have write access and that has enough disk space to hold your spatial data. 2. Create a subdirectory that will hold the general GRASS database.
Location: It is defined by its coordinate system, map projection and geographical boundaries. The subdirectories and files defining a Location are created automatically when GRASS is started the first time with a new location. It is important to understand that each projection stays in its own location.
 Mapsets: Each location can have many mapsets. Each mapset is a location's subdirectory. New mapset can be added as GRASS startup. Permanent: They usually contain read-only data that is visible by all users. Owner: They are created by users and represent specific study areas in a location.
Region: It is a subset of location and sets the boundaries for a master map. Database Mapset Location Mapset Database Vermanent Owner Owner
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills 9

Figure 85 : Slide 9 of course 7, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

The GRASS GIS database can be accessed directly from QGIS by installing an extension of QGIS (Figure 86).

2. GRASS workspace (3/4)				FuseGi	Erasmus+
 Once you load the Plugin go to the Main menu>Plugins databases and functionalities. The following main feature GRASS plugin: 		Construction of the second	-	³ States and a state of a manufacture state of a s	
	U.S.	Open Mapset	1	Create new GRASS vector	
😡 Turkina Project – 535 Project Ealt Yew Layer Settings <mark>Eugent</mark> Vector Earlier Database Web Mech Programing Heb	08	New Mapset	M	Edit GRASS vector layer	
□ ■	Ú.	Close Mapset	9	Open GRASS tools	
B - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 -	ME	Add GRASS vector layer	0m	Display current GRASS region	
* 11 Special Restricts * 22 House	(%	Add GRASS raster layer		Edit current GRASS region	
 You can load vector or raster layers using the appropriate b or you can create a new GRASS location with QGIS and imp GRASS Toolbox. 					
 GRASS data are stored in a directory referred to as GISDBA with the GRASS plugin in QGIS. The GRASS GIS data are orga 					.
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills					10

Figure 86 : Slide 10 of course 7, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

Once the extension is installed, it is very simple to use the data from GRASS GIS through QGIS (Figure 87).

a Settinga Rader Vector in	regery 10-rester Database Temponti Help		- 0 ×	🔓 GRASS GS Map Display 1 - newl.	PHARAE	a 20 mm		×
M Co Matt (Import, export and link Manage maps Computational region Asster Vector Managery Jo raster Database	- 0 ×	gs/Raster/V	ector/Imager	y/3D Raster/D	atabase/Temporal	Hel
	- 8 Fave - 2 Adams - 2 Octobe - 3 Octobe - 3 Octobe - 4	GUI tools	The Sether Rate None Weinigen Neprings Sether September September Setter	¹⁰⁴ Sering Later Vector Image Computational region ODDS under presenter Mag projektion References References	The second secon	Dentity vector map Tipology matteriance Manage colors Query vector map Feature stelection Map type conventions Buffer octons [schoffer] Painte analysis Linear onlysis Linear onlysis [Linear offensing	Denter Denter Impered Help Denter mp Help proceedings Denter mp Help proceedings Denter mp Denter m	3
Layers /	Advanced works. Real Clark to not real 4. Clark limit to non-monoid Liques (Construction) This (Pattern)	es / Data / Python	 Depter/weiter (appp) Remail Demois Demois (construction) Demoistiker (construction) 	mapl mit promoti	Autorementorie Historiage medicing Groundwater modeling Landscape patch analysis Window motifiering Change category volues and labe Generate senders Generate senders	Network analysis Overlap vector maps Manage categories Update attiluates Generate areas for current region. (conve Generate areas from points Generate areas from points Generate areas	Reports and Indiation	<u>,</u>

Figure 87 : Slide 11 of course 7, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

Thanks to GRASS GIS, it is possible to process raster or vector type data information. First, the course specifies how to process raster information through GRASS (Figure 88).

3. V	Working with raster & vector data (1/4)	Erasmus+
	Raster data processing in GRASS GIS	
	A raster map is a data layer consisting of a gridded array of cells. It has a certain number of rows and colu data point in each cell. These may exist a 2D grid or as a 3D cube made up of many smaller cubes.	imns, with a
•	The geographic boundaries of the raster map are described by the north, south, east and west fields.	
•	 As a general rule in GRASS GIS: 1. Raster output maps have their bounds and resolution equal to those of the current computational region. 2. Raster input maps are automatically cropped/padded and rescaled to match the current region. 3. Raster input maps are automatically masked if a raster map named MASK exists. The MASK is only a reading maps from the disk. 	
•	For importing scanned maps, the user will need to create a x,y location, scan the map in the desired resoluti it into an appropriate raster format (e.g. tiff, jpeg, png) and then use <u>rin.gbal</u> , to import it. Based on refer the scanned map can be <u>recified</u> to obtain geocoded data.	
•	GRASS raster map processing is always performed in the current region settings, i.e. the current region current raster resolution is used.	extent and
Fu	useGI advancing GIS professional skills	12

Figure 88 : Slide 12 of course 7, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

Many commands are available to create and analyze raster data using GRASS (Figure 89).

	ommands		
r.basins.fill	Generates watershed subbasins raster map	r.colors	Creates/modifies the color table associates with a raster map
r. blend	Blends color components of two raster maps by a given ratio	r.colors.out	Exports the color table associated with a raster map
r.buffer	Creates a raster map showing buffer zones surrounding cells that contain non-NULL category values	r.distance	Locates the closest points between objects in two raster points.
r.carve	Generates stream channels	r.in.bin	Import a binary raster file into a GRASS raster map layer.
r.circle	Creates a raster map containing concentric rings around a given point	r.in.png	Imports non-georeferenced PNG format image.
r.clump	Recategorizes data in a raster map by grouping cells that form physically discrete areas into unique categories	r.out.png	Export a GRASS raster map as a non-georeferenced PNG image.

Figure 89 : Slide 13 of course 7, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

In a second step, the course specifies how to process the information of a vector through the GRASS GIS application (Figure 90).

3. Working with raster & vector data (3/4)	FuseGi
Vector data processing in GRASS GIS	
• A vector map is a data layer consisting of a number of sparse features in geographic s lines, polygons, volumes or some combination of all these.	pace. These might be data points,
 Typically each feature in the map will be tied to a set of attribute layers stored in a dat etc.). 	tabase (road names, geologic type
• The <u>vin.ogr</u> module offers a common interface for many different vector formats. Add on-the-fly creation of new locations or extension of the default region to match the ex	
 With v.external external maps can be virtually linked into a mapset, only pseudo-top geometry is not imported. GRASS vector map processing is always performed on the input map has to be clipped to the current region beforehand (v.in.region, v.overlay, v. 	full map. If this is not desired, the
 GRASS is a topological GIS. This means that adjacent geographic components in a singl Topological representation of vector data helps to produce and maintain vector maps enables certain analyses that can not be conducted with non-topological data. 	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills	14

Figure 90 : Slide 14 of course 7, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

Many commands are available to create and analyze vector data using GRASS (Figure 91).

v.buffer	Creates a buffer around vector features of given type	v.db.droprow	Removes a vector feature from a vector map through attribute selection
v.build	Creates topology for vector map	v.db.droptable	Removes existing attribute table of a vector map
v.class	Classifies attribute data, e.g. for thematic mapping	v.db.select	Prints vector map attributes
v.clip	Extracts features of input map which overlay features of clip map	v.drape	Converts 2D vector features to 3D by sampling of elevation raster map
v.cluster	Performs cluster identification	v.edit	Edits a vector map, allows adding, deleting and modifying selected vector features
v.colors	Creates/modifies the color table associated with a vector map	v.generalize	Performs vector based generalization
v.In region	Creates a vector polygon from the current region extent	v.patch	Creates a new vector map by combining other vector maps

Figure 91 : Slide 15 of course 7, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

The GRASS GIS software also allows raster data to be processed as images (Figure 92).

4. Image Processing (1/2)	FuseGi Erasmus
 Satellite imagery is commonly stored in Digital Numbers (DN) for minimizing the stor sampled analog physical value (color, temperature, ets) is stored a discrete representation 	
 To obtain physical values from DNs, satellite image providers use a liner transform equiradiance-at-sensor in 8 to 16 bits. DNs can be turned back into physical values by as (y+b)/a). 	
 In GRASS GIS, there are two ways to apply atmospheric correction for satellite imagery. Landsat is with i.landsat.toar, using the DOS correction method. 	A simple, less accurate way for
Image data are identical to raster data However, a couple of commands are explicitly dedi	icated to image processing.
 As a general rule in GRASS: Raster/imagery output maps have their bounds and resolution equal to those of the Raster/imagery input maps are automatically cropped/padded and rescaled (using r match the current region. 	
 GRASS raster/imagery map processing is always performed in the current region setting and current raster resolution is used. If the resolution differs from that of the input raste is performed (nearest neighbor resampling). 	
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills	16
4. Image Processing (2/2)	Erasmus+
 An image processing system has at least five elements: image input, image storage, image and information reporting. 	e analysis, accuracy assessment
Single and multispectral data can be classified to user defined land use/land cover class segmentation will be used. GRASS supports the following methods:	es. In case of a single channel,
 Radiometric classification: Unsupervised classification (i.cluster, i.maxlik) using the Maximum Likelihood cla method. Supervised classification (i.gensig or g.gul.iclass, i.maxlik) using the Maximum classification method Combined radiometric/geometric (segmentation base) classification: Supervised classification (i.gensigset, i.smap) Object-oriented classification: Unsupervised classification: Unsupervised classification (segmentation based: i.segment) 	
 In case of using multispectral data, improvements of the resolution can be gained by mer with color channels. GRASS provides the HIS (i.rgb.his, i.his.rgb) ant the Brovey and the methods. 	
Atmospheric effects can be removed with <u>i.atcorr</u> . Correction for topographic/terrain effect	cts is offered in i.topo.corr.
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills	17

Figure 92 : Slides 16 and 17 of course 7, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

Finally, it is possible to find public data repositories in the course, via links, to access useful data to obtain information on the biosphere or the environment for example (Figure 93).



Figure 93 : Slides 18 and 19 of course 7, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

3.8 Course 8: Hydrological Analysis and QGIS Tools

The eighth course is **entirely focused on one discipline, hydrology**. This course is therefore more specific since it is directly related to this field. Nevertheless, it **is not inaccessible to people who do not know this field**. It consists of an introduction to hydrology and a presentation of software used for hydrology. We can also find a description of the useful tools and the procedure to follow for a hydrological analysis (Figure 94).



Figure 94 : Course outline 8, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

This course learns, for example, how to use GIS to define a catchment area or flow direction, as well as the basics of hydrology (Figure 95).



Figure 95 : Slide 6 of course 8, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

The first slides introduce hydrology to participants who are not in this field or to make some reminders for those working or studying in the field of hydrology (Figure 96).



Figure 96 : Slide 7 of course 8, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

Hydrological analysis tools are a very important resource in this area. GIS software is used, but river modeling software or hydraulic modeling software is also used **(Figure 97).**

2. Hydrological Software (1/2)	FuseGi	174
		Erasmus+
 Hydrological analysis tools are important resources and are used in a variety of program range of an area interacts with water. 	ms to define how t	he geographic
 Hydrological analysis through Geographic Information Systems can help researchers ide groundwater. A variety of programs can be used to perform hydrological analysis ine SAGA GIS. 		
<u>Geographical Information Systems</u>		
 QGIS, a free and open source software, offers hydrology tools for performing hydro analysis and creating digital elevation models. It is the most popular GIS tool in Resources. 		GIS
 SAGA GIS is a powerful software containing tools for spatial analysis and characteriza basins. The interpolation options in SAGA GIS are better implemented than in other free to the state of the state		
commercial software. Web: http://www.saga-gis.org/en/index.html	SAGA	
	System for Antomated Go	oscientific Analyses
FuseGLadvancing GIS professional skills		8
2. Hydrological Software (2/2)	FuseGi	Erasmus+
➢ River Modeling		
• HEC-RAS is developed by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. It helps evaluating	the flow depth.	RAS
velocities and flooded zones. The Hydrologic Engineering Center (HEC) developed t System (RAS) to aid hydraulic engineers in channel flow analysis and floodplain determ Web: https://www.hec.usace.army.mil/software/hec-ras/	he River Analysis	
 IRIC is a software developed to provide a complete river simulation environment and exported and used for analysis, mitigation and disaster prevention, through the visu simulation results. Web: <u>https://i-ric.org/en/</u> 		IRIC Software Changen Hver States
Hydrologic Modeling		
 HEC-HMS is designed to simulate the hydrologic processes in basins. It includes ma such as event infiltration, unit hydrographs and hydrologic routing. Web: <u>https://www.hec.usace.army.mil/software/hec-hms/</u> 	ny hydrologic anal	ysis procedures
 PRMS is a deterministic, distributed-parameter, physical process based modeling s response of various combinations of climate and land use in streamflow and general w 	A COMPANY OF COMPANY OF CALMER	
FuseOI advancing GIS professional skills		9

Figure 97 : Slides 8 and 9 of course 8, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

There is a toolbox available with QGIS that allows hydrological analyses to be carried out. This toolkit is known as SAGA (Figure 98).

3. Hydrological Analysis - Toolboxes (1/3)	Erasmus+
 Hydrological analysis tools are important resources and are used in a variety of progrange of an area interacts with water. 	rams to define how the geographic
• It is performed to quantify the volumetric flow rate of water draining from a watersh	ed (e.g. drainage area) over time.
Hydrological analysis can aid researchers and emergency personnel in identify groundwater, delineating watersheds and identifying communities prone to flooding	
GIS software includes methods for describing hydrologic characteristics and tools to surface, calculate flow path length and assign stream orders.	calculate flow across an elevation
These kinds of derived data are often used to aggregate landscape information for in	put to hydrologic models.
Hydrological data can help us prepare and plan for extreme events by identifying better manage water resources in ways that suit the economical state and the enviro	-
 Hydrological analysis is mainly based on a digital elevation model (DEM) raster data which is used to study the hydrological characteristics and simulation of surface during 	
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills	10
3. Hydrological Analysis - Toolboxes (2/3)	FuseGi
QGIS has an extensive set of tools available for hydrological analyses located in the hy	ydrology toolbox.
 There are many tools for spatial data processing of hydrological model inputs. commands, most of them come from SAGA GIS and GRASS GIS under the processing 	These tools are not native QGIS tool.
These tools allow you to:	Processing Toolbes
 Perform depresionless elevation layers, Extract stream networks, Delimitate basins and channel networks. 	O Excent/yead O Excent/yead O Excent/yead O Extense O Extense O Extense O Extense O Extense O Extense
 Processing Tab > Toolbox > SAGA. SAGA (System for Automated Geoscientific Analysis) is a free, hybrid, cross-platfit software which provide many geoscientific methods bundled in so-called module libraries 	orm GIS
 The plugin does not include SAGA itself. To use the plugin you need to install SAGA. SAGA homepage for installations and packages. 	Vector overlay
 Tools given in SAGA library can be used as any other processing algorithm: as a sta tool, in batch processes, in models and scripts. 	
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills	11
3. Hydrological Analysis - Toolboxes (3/3)	FuseGi
Processing Tab > Toolbox > SAGA.	
Simulation - Hydrology Simulation - Hydrology	Terrain Analysis - Hydrology Gell Balance
Terrain Analysis – Channels S Diffuse Pollution Risk Overland Flow	 Edge Contamination Flow Accumulation (Flow Tracing)
Terrain Analysis – Hydrology Source Constraint (Kinematic Wave) Quesi-Dynamic Flow Accumulation	 Flow Accumulation (Parallelizable) Flow Accumulation (Recursive)
These three libraries of tools can mainly used in a hydrological exercise. Surface and Gradient Water Retention Capacity	 Flow Accumulation (Top-Down) Flow Detween Fields Flow Path Length Flow Width and Specific Catchment Area foot Width and Specific Catchment Area foot Konnes Variable Speed
 You will also need tools such as <i>clip</i> and <i>extract</i> Tensin Analysis - Channels So to isolate the data of your study area. 	 & Lake Flood & LS Factor & LS Factor, Field Based
Channel Network and Drainage Basins So Created Song States Song States States	Maximum Flow Path Length Metton Ruggedness Number SAGA Wetness Index SAGA Wetness Index Solope Length
depending on every case.	Steam Power Index Stream Power Index
 Create 2D maps using the right tools and symbols. 	 Topographic Wetness Index (TWI) Upstope Area
 A complete hydrological analysis uses a variety of QGIS toolboxes, not only for presentation. 	or data extraction but also their
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills	12

Figure 98 : Slides 10, 11, and 12 of course 8, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

The digital elevation model is widely used in environmental science, whether in hydrology or vegetation cover management. This course allows you to define and create this type of model **(Figure 99).**



Figure 99 : Slides 13 and 14 of course 8, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

In addition, the digital elevation model allows the creation of rainwater and surface water flow direction (Figure 100).

. Flow Direction – Catchment Area (1/3)	FuseGi
 In order to start your analysis, you should have created the elements of the previous section. Image: Constraint of the previous section. 	evation model of your study area following the steps in How can you understand the right flow direction?
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills	15

Figure 100 : Slide 15 of course 8, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

Then, it is possible to determine the watershed in different areas (Figure 101).



Figure 101 : Slide 16 of course 8, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

And finally, it is possible to perform additional analyses, such as determining the importance of the different watercourses in the watershed using the SAGA tool (Figure 102).

5. Flow Direction – Catchment Area (3/3)	FuseGi
The following steps must be completed in order to calculate the flow direction:	
Download DEM tiles Mosaic DEM tiles Reproject DEM Subset DEM	Fill sinks/ remove spikes
 Calculate Strahler order and determine threshold for streams. SAGA > Terrain Analysis – Channels > Strahler order. The higher the order, the bigger the stream. Make a nice legend, where the highest Strahler orders are more blue so you can clearer see what the rivers are. 	
 Calculate flow direction, channel network and catchments. SAGA > Terrain Analysis – Channels > Channel Network and drainage basins. 	B estroya B estroim
• Define outflow point, where the water join another water body, such as a river, lake, sea or ocean.	
 Delineate catchment. SAGA > Terrain Analysis – Hydrology > Upslope Area. Remove all unnecessary layers and clip all the data outside the study area. Create a .pdf map. 	- 1 st - 2 nd - 3 rd
FuseGI advancing GIS professional skills	17

Figure 102 : Slide 17 of course 8, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

3.9 Course 9: Web Scraping Applications in QGIS

The ninth and final course of the platform is specific to learning "web scraping", i.e. searching for information online and **processing this information with online tools or with software such as QGIS.** This course consists of the introduction of the notion of "web scraping" then the method of searching for online data, the presentation of a realistic case study in the field of health, and finally the method of using "web scraping" and QGIS (Figure 103).



Figure 103 : Course outline 9, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

First, web scraping involves importing online data into spreadsheets such as Excel (Figure 104).

														What doe		heer				,				
Province de Limi	ouro Ir	adder i m	differ in co	da 1																			22	
Neerpeit et Overp								14	1	XX	Tiv	IPÉC	ΔTA	Import da	ata fr	om a	a wel	bsite	to a	sprea	adsh	eet ta	able.	
Meeuwen-Gruteo	et Opgiu	thore des	emails Ou	dibergen.				0	11			lopédie												
Liste des com	unes	rodiler) r	otter is -	[ebox				1	y	Le	encyc	topedie	nbre											
														Excel & C	Chron	ne b	rows	ser c	offer	tools	to i	mpo	rt ta	bles
# • Commune	1846 Hab. *	1900 Hab. *	1947 Hab. *	2000 Hab. *	2020 ¹ Hath.	1846 Index *	1900 Index *	1947 Index * 1	rdex * i	2020 Index *	sort. km ⁺ *	per • Riche	esse + 17)	from wiki								spre	adsh	eet.
1 Amers	118-682	383 587	525 396	446 525	527 763	100	323	444	376	445	204.51	2 572		The easies	st is t	he E	xcel	« Da	ta » c	dongl	e			
2 Gand	126 828					100							87.7	The easie.					1995 - C. (1997)		1000			
		222 895	254 218				173	197	174	205	156,18	1 088	87,7	The easie										
3 Chateroi	126 828	222 895 198 837	254 218 233 737	224 180 200 827	203 614 203 376	100	364	427	367	205 372	100,18	1 088		The easie										
3 Chateroi 4 Lilige	54 694	222 895 198 837 206 384			203 614 203 376 106 623						102.08		102,5	The easie										
3 Chateroi	54 604 89 943	208 384	231 502	185 639	196 623	100	364	427	367	372	102.08	1 992 2 834	102.5 73,3	The easie										
3 Chaterol 4 Litige . Wie de	54 604 89 943	208 384	231 502	185 639	196 623	100 100	364 229	427 257	367 205	372 219	102.08 69.39 32.61	1 992 2 834	102.5 73,3 81,1	The easie										
3 Chaterol 4 Litige 8 Wile de Brusetes	54 694 89 943 129 680	208 384 218 623	231 502 184 838	185 639 133 859 105 882	196 823 183 287	100 100 100	384 229 169	427 257 143	367 205 103	372 219 541	102.08 09.39 32.61 8.14	1 962 2 834 5 621	102.5 73.3 81.1 69.8	The easie	C 1400 Text	0	1 2142 Max 1	2000 1000	PROVINCI INVAL	el There index 1	2 2000 Dona	1000000000	2 (2000) 100400 1	C 1010 KA
3 Chateroi 4 Liege 5 Wie de Brusetes 6 Schaerbeek	54 694 89 943 129 680 6 211	208 384 218 623 63 508	231 502 184 838 123 671	185 639 133 859 105 882	196 823 183 287 131 548	100 100 100 100	364 229 169 1.025	427 257 143 1.991	367 205 103 1702	372 210 541 2 118	102.08 09.39 32.61 8.14	1 962 2 854 5-621 16 160	102,5 73,3 81,1 88,6 06,2 04,1 111,2	I Consume Consumer	C I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I	0 • 1000 0000 1000 1046 1000 1046	1 1947 Hali 535 394	2 2000 Hall 2000 Hall 440 525	- 2024023 mash 2029 mash 522 763	Elization 1346 June 330	- Tree Private 1000 instan 323	1367 index 644	K - Jane Stores 2000 index 375	- 100 miles 2020 inde 445
3 Chaterol 4 Lings 5 Wie de Brusetes 6 Schamberk 7 Anderlecht	54 694 89 943 129 680 6 211 5 966	208 384 218 623 63 508 47 929	231 502 164 838 123 671 86 412	185 639 133 859 105 692 87 812	106 823 183 287 131 548 129 009	100 100 100 100 100	364 229 169 1.022 800	427 257 143 1.001 1.448	367 206 103 1 702 1 472	372 219 541 2 118 2 012	102.08 69,39 32,01 8,14 17,74	1 992 2 834 5 621 16 160 6 785	102,5 73,3 81,1 88,6 06,2 04,1		C Tana and Tana and			2000 Halls 2000 Halls 440 525 224 Jan 200 KJ7	2000 math 2009 math 527 783 203 824 203 824 203 824		- 1000 Person 1000 indian 123 372 384	1007 miles 644 1977	5000 index 2000 index 2010 104 104 104	2020 June 1
3 Chaterol 4 Litige 5 Ville de 5 Drusetes 6 Schambeek 7 Anderecht 8 Bruges	54 894 89 943 129 680 6 211 5 968 90 855	206 384 218 623 63 508 47 929 70 277	231 502 164 838 123 671 86 412 93 562	185 639 133 859 105 692 87 812 116 246 105 419	196 823 183 287 131 548 120 009 118 536	100 100 100 100 100 100	364 229 169 1.023 800 115	427 257 143 1 001 1 448 155	367 206 103 1 702 1 472 191	372 219 141 2 118 2 012 196	102.08 69.39 32.61 8.14 17.74 138.40	1 002 2 834 5 621 6 705 6 705	102,5 73,3 81,1 88,6 06,2 04,1 111,2	Community Commun	C 13880 0000 100 000 100 000 100 000 100 000 100 000 100 000	383 557 222 895 198 817 206 384	526 396 254 216 238 727 235 560	224 180 200 827 185 638	263 824 203 876 596-623	230 230 230	578 304 229	187 437 257	147 206	373 259
Chaterol Linge Urite de Druastes Schambenk Anderlecht Anderlecht Namu Moentdest-	54 694 89 943 129 680 6 211 5 968 60 855 42 529 35 334	208 384 218 623 63 508 47 929 70 277 62 427	231 502 184 838 123 671 86 412 95 562 77 584 67 322	185 639 133 859 105 692 87 812 116 246 105 419 88 014	196 823 183 287 131 548 120 009 118 536 111 127 102 126	100 100 100 100 100 100 100	384 229 1 023 803 115 147 566	427 287 143 1 891 1 448 153 182 191	367 200 103 1 702 1 472 191 249 249	372 219 541 2 118 2 012 106 281 289	102,08 09,39 32,61 8,14 17,74 158,40 175,69 56,63	1 102 2 834 5 621 6 160 6 705 858 631 1 803	102,5 73,3 81,1 08,8 06,2 04,1 111,2 98,1 113,0	All Consume	C 10400 mail: 110 462 128 629 149 643 149 644 149 644	382 557 322 895 198 847 306 384 258 623 63 508	1.26 396 254 216 210 787 215 502 134 038 123 671	224 180 200 AJ7 185 638 133 859 105 667	263 834 203 876 596 623 583 287 523 548	330 100 300 100 300 100 300	573 364 229 569 5.628	187 6/7 257 143 1 991	147 205 333 333	773 259 543 7.538
Challerol Linge Linge Vile de Bruwbles Staambeek Anderscht Binges Namut Louwn Mientoesk- Saars-Jean	54 694 89 943 129 680 6 211 5 966 60 855 42 529 35 334 12 965	208 384 218 623 63 508 47 929 70 277 62 427 58 523 58 445	231 502 184 838 123 671 86 412 93 562 77 564 67 322 63 922	185 639 133 859 105 602 87 812 116 246 105 418 86 914 71 219	196 623 183 287 131 548 120 009 118 536 111 127 102 126 87 365	100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100	384 229 1 023 800 1 15 147 156 404	427 207 143 1991 1448 153 182 191 530	367 208 103 1 702 1 472 191 248 249 500	372 219 541 2 118 2 012 196 281 269 807	102.08 00.39 32.61 8.14 17.74 138.40 175.69 56.03 5.09	1 962 2 834 5 621 6 765 6 765 6 60	102.5 73.3 81,1 98,6 06,2 04,1 111,2 98,1		C 1100 Feet 13 452 13 455 14 55 15 16 15 16 15 16 15 16 16 17 16 17	343 557 222 895 198 647 206 984 238 623 63 508 67 979 30 277	526 396 254 216 110 777 211 560 384 838 523 671 86 412 81 062	224 180 200 8/7 585 639 133 855 585 662 87 812 110 246	265 804 203 876 596 623 583 287 523 548 520 888 520 888 530 888	336 350 350 350 350 300 300 300 300	573 864 229 509 5.028 801 115	187 6.77 257 143 1.990 1.468 153	14.7 206 333	873 259 543 2 518 2 013 106
Chaterol Linge Urite de Druastes Schambenk Anderlecht Namu Namu Moenbesk	54 694 89 943 129 680 6 211 5 966 60 855 42 529 35 334 12 965	206 384 218 623 63 508 47 629 70 277 62 427 58 523	231 502 184 838 123 671 86 412 95 562 77 584 67 322	185 639 133 859 105 692 87 812 116 246 105 419 88 014	196 823 183 287 131 548 120 009 118 536 111 127 102 126	100 100 100 100 100 100 100	384 229 1 023 803 115 147 566	427 287 143 1 891 1 448 153 182 191	367 200 103 1 702 1 472 191 249 249	372 219 541 2 118 2 012 106 281 289	102,08 09,39 32,61 8,14 17,74 158,40 175,69 56,63	1 102 2 834 5 621 6 160 6 705 858 631 1 803	102,5 73,3 81,1 08,8 06,2 04,1 111,2 98,1 113,0	Image: Contraction Operation Image: Contraction Image: Contraction Image: Contrecontraction	2 124 mm 124 mm	343 557 232 895 198 817 306 984 758 623 63 508 67 979 30 277 62 427	526 396 254 216 110 727 211 502 384 838 523 671 86 412 85 682 77 584	224 180 200 8/7 585 638 133 855 585 667 87 813 116 246 525 459	263 884 203 876 596 623 583 287 525 588 120 889 138 536 111 527	336 350 100 350 350 350 350 350 350	573 mi4 229 000 5.028 801 115 147	187 6.77 257 343 1.995 1.648 353 153	147 208 303 1.702 1.471 155 248	873 259 543 2.538 2.012 205 201
 Challeroi Ligge Vile de Bruaetes Schambeek Anoenecht Anoenecht Namur Louan Samo-Jean 	54 694 89 943 129 680 6 211 5 966 60 855 42 529 35 334 12 965	208 384 218 623 63 508 47 929 70 277 62 427 58 523 58 445	231 502 184 838 123 671 86 412 93 562 77 564 67 322 63 922	185 639 133 859 105 602 87 812 116 246 105 418 86 914 71 219	196 623 183 287 131 548 120 009 118 536 111 127 102 126 87 365	100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100	384 229 1 023 800 1 15 147 156 464	427 207 143 1991 1448 153 182 191 530	367 208 103 1 702 1 472 191 248 249 500	372 219 541 2 118 2 012 196 281 269 807	102.08 00.39 32.61 8.14 17.74 138.40 175.69 56.03 5.09	1 102 2 834 5 621 6 160 6 705 858 631 1 803	102,5 73,3 81,1 08,8 06,2 04,1 111,2 98,1 113,0		Control 1	383 557 222 895 198 437 236 384 238 623 43 508 47 109 30 277 10 247 58 523 58 523 58 445	5.26.314 224.216 110.727 215.500 134.838 523.631 86.412 29.662 77.534 67.532 63.322	224 180 200 8/7 245 638 133 859 905 662 87 813 110 246 205 458 88 018 71 219	265 804 203 876 596 623 585 287 525 588 130 889 130 889 136 536 111 527 507 585	136 130 130 130 130 130 130 130 130 130 130	573 864 229 100 5 028 803 115 547 188 684	107 427 257 143 1 880 1 448 153 153 150 160 186	14.7 205 153 1.702 1.473 255 246 246 249 150	873 259 543 2 518 2 413 2 413 2 413 2 413 2 55 201 899 803
Challerol Linge Linge Vile de Bruwhles Staambeek Zaambeek Anderscht Binges Namut Louwn Mientoesk- Saarb-Javan	54 694 89 943 129 680 6 211 5 966 60 855 42 529 35 334 12 965	208 384 218 623 63 508 47 929 70 277 62 427 58 523 58 445	231 502 184 838 123 671 86 412 93 562 77 564 67 322 63 922	185 639 133 859 105 602 87 812 116 246 105 418 86 914 71 219	196 623 183 287 131 548 120 009 118 536 111 127 102 126 87 365	100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100	384 229 1 023 800 1 15 147 156 464	427 207 143 1991 1448 153 182 191 530	367 208 103 1 702 1 472 191 248 249 500	372 219 541 2 118 2 012 196 281 269 807	102.08 00.39 32.61 8.14 17.74 138.40 175.69 56.03 5.09	1 102 2 834 5 621 6 160 6 705 858 631 1 803	102,5 73,3 81,1 08,8 06,2 04,1 111,2 98,1 113,0	2 2 2 Contract 2 2 Contract 2 Acress 2 Contract 2	C 134 (Marcine) 134	383 557 222 895 198 887 306 384 238 623 63 508 67 109 30 277 82 427 58 523	526 394 254 214 313 727 215 502 314 838 523 671 81 402 77 584 87 322	224 180 200 8/77 585 608 133 855 505 667 87 812 210 246 505 459 88 018	263 804 203 876 596 623 683 287 535 548 120 809 118 536 111 127 102 826	136 130 140 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 15	573 864 229 009 5.028 803 3.15 547 1888 864 248	187 627 257 143 1991 1448 153 153 150 150	147 208 100 1 202 1 471 202 203 204 200 100 125	873 259 541 2 538 2 413 2 55 201 205 201 209 809 803 1028
Challerol Linge Linge Vile de Bruwhles Staambeek Zaambeek Anderscht Binges Namut Louwn Mientoesk- Saarb-Javan	54 694 89 943 129 680 6 211 5 966 60 855 42 529 35 334 12 965	208 384 218 623 63 508 47 929 70 277 62 427 58 523 58 445	231 502 184 838 123 671 86 412 93 562 77 564 67 322 63 922	185 639 133 859 105 602 87 812 116 246 105 418 86 914 71 219	196 623 183 287 131 548 120 009 118 536 111 127 102 126 87 365	100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100	384 229 1 023 800 1 15 147 156 464	427 207 143 1991 1448 153 182 191 530	367 208 103 1 702 1 472 191 248 249 500	372 219 541 2 118 2 012 196 281 269 807	102.08 00.39 32.61 8.14 17.74 138.40 175.69 56.03 5.09	1 102 2 834 5 621 6 160 6 705 858 631 1 803	102,5 73,3 81,1 08,8 06,2 04,1 111,2 98,1 113,0	2 2 4 2 6 controls 2 5 controls	C 1 Ben mark 124 629 124 629 54 629 54 629 54 629 54 229 54 29	343 557 222 895 114 417 236 384 238 623 63 508 47 109 30 277 54 757 54 757 54 855 57 263 56 809	526 394 294 216 211 727 215 969 214 838 523 671 86 41,7 21 960 77 594 67 327 61 327 86 072 96 071 77 394	224 180 230 8/7 585 638 133 856 986 687 87 813 110 246 905 428 88 018 71 235 90 025 73 134 78 813	203 824 203 835 963 267 963 267 953 267 953 267 953 268 97 265 97 265 97 265 97 265 97 265 97 265	136 130 130 130 130 130 130 130 130 130 130	573 304 229 509 3.028 903 903 903 903 904 904 905 905 905 905 905 905 905 905	107 407 287 141 1 980 1 448 153 153 153 155 160 160 107 107 107 107 107 107 107 107 107 10	ni7 206 303 1 202 1 407 305 246 346 540 125 553 231	277 259 543 2 518 2 412 205 201 205 201 205 201 205 201 205 205 205 205 205 205 205 205 205 205
 Challeroi Ligge Vile de Bruaetes Schambeek Anoenecht Anoenecht Namur Louan Samo-Jean 	54 694 89 943 129 680 6 211 5 966 60 855 42 529 35 334 12 965	208 384 218 623 63 508 47 929 70 277 62 427 58 523 58 445	231 502 184 838 123 671 86 412 93 562 77 564 67 322 63 922	185 639 133 859 105 602 87 812 116 246 105 418 86 914 71 219	196 623 183 287 131 548 120 009 118 536 111 127 102 126 87 365	100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100	384 229 1 023 800 1 15 147 156 464	427 207 143 1991 1448 153 182 191 530	367 208 103 1 702 1 472 191 248 249 500	372 219 541 2 118 2 012 196 281 269 807	102.08 00.39 32.61 8.14 17.74 138.40 175.69 56.03 5.09	1 102 2 834 5 621 6 160 6 705 858 631 1 803	102,5 73,3 81,1 08,8 06,2 04,1 111,2 98,1 113,0	1 Immune 2 Journame 2 Accession 3 Accession 4 Accession 5 Accession 6 Accession 5 Accession 6 Accession 7 Accession 8 Accession 9 Accession 10 Accession 11 Accession 12 Accession 13 Accession	C 1100 Conto 110 Alexa mails 110 Alexa mails 110 Alexa 110 Ale	141 557 222 895 114 447 236 894 238 423 63 508 47 109 70 277 12 427 58 528 58 528 59 405 57 243 59 415 59 500 64 781	526 396 204 236 210 777 211 560 214 838 234 838 238 633 96 417 21 960 277 584 47 302 40 711 23 180 47 711 23 184 77 2311	224 180 200 8/7 345 638 133 850 905 660 87 813 110 246 905 428 88 018 71 219 90 925 73 174 78 813 75 438	203 824 203 835 203 835 203 863 203 863 203 864 203 864 203 866 203 866 203 866 204 205 868 87 965 867 768	235 200 100 100 200 200 200 200 200 200 200	573 304 229 500 500 5028 803 3028 803 3155 547 348 404 248 413 253 2175	187 477 287 143 1885 1885 1885 1885 188 188 189 189 189 180 186 207 207 207 207 207 207 207 207 207 207	ni7 206 313 1 202 1 401 202 244 349 540 325 543 244 244	273 259 241 2 518 2 518 2 518 2 518 2 55 2 55 2 55 2 55 2 55 2 55 2 55 2 5
Challerol Linge Linge Vile de Bruwhles Staambeek Zaambeek Anderscht Binges Namut Louwn Mientoesk- Saarb-Javan	54 694 89 943 129 680 6 211 5 966 60 855 42 529 35 334 12 965	208 384 218 623 63 508 47 929 70 277 62 427 58 523 58 445	231 502 184 838 123 671 86 412 93 562 77 564 67 322 63 922	185 639 133 859 105 602 87 812 116 246 105 418 86 914 71 219	196 623 183 287 131 548 120 009 118 536 111 127 102 126 87 365	100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100	384 229 1 023 800 1 15 147 156 464	427 207 143 1991 1448 153 182 191 530	367 208 103 1 702 1 472 191 248 249 500	372 219 541 2 118 2 012 196 281 269 807	102.08 00.39 32.61 8.14 17.74 138.40 175.69 56.03 5.09	1 102 2 834 5 621 6 160 6 705 858 631 1 803	102,5 73,3 81,1 08,8 06,2 04,1 111,2 98,1 113,0	2 2 4 2 6 controls 2 5 controls	C 1340 met Materials 128 428 128 428 128 428 128 428 129 428 129 428 129 428 129 428 129 428 129 428 12 42 12 428 12 428	341 557 222 895 194 447 236 894 238 423 47 509 47 509 47 509 47 509 54 533 54 455 57 545 56 500 66 783 54 65 57 784	525 394 324 236 310 727 314 838 523 633 86 413 31 960 77 564 87 332 80 571 80 772 80 771 80 773 80 771 80 771 70 233 31 556 71 921	224 180 200 8.77 385 6439 133 859 105 660 87 813 110 246 905 429 88 018 71 218 90 025 73 134 78 813 75 438 76 821 79 568	203 824 203 826 203 826 203 827 203 827 203 827 203 827 203 827 203 826 203 827 203 826 203 826 203 827 203 826 203 827 203	235 100 100 200 200 200 200 200 200	572 364 229 509 5028 903 315 547 348 444 548 441 553 573 203 2044	107 477 257 143 1480 1448 153 153 153 153 153 164 165 166 166 166	ni 7 205 205 207 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 205 203 204 204 204 204 204 204	173 219 543 2 518 2 612 205 201 205 201 209 003 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100
Challerol Linge Linge Vile de Bruwhles Staambeek Zaambeek Anderscht Binges Namut Louwn Mientoesk- Saarb-Javan	54 694 89 943 129 680 6 211 5 966 60 855 42 529 35 334 12 965	208 384 218 623 63 508 47 929 70 277 62 427 58 523 58 445	231 502 184 838 123 671 86 412 93 562 77 564 67 322 63 922	185 639 133 859 105 602 87 812 116 246 105 418 86 914 71 219	196 623 183 287 131 548 120 009 118 536 111 127 102 126 87 365	100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100	384 229 1 023 800 1 15 147 156 464	427 207 143 1991 1448 153 182 191 530	367 208 103 1 702 1 472 191 248 249 500	372 219 541 2 118 2 012 196 281 269 807	102.08 00.39 32.61 8.14 17.74 138.40 175.69 56.03 5.09	1 102 2 834 5 621 6 160 6 705 858 631 1 803	102,5 73,3 81,1 08,8 06,2 04,1 111,2 98,1 113,0	Image: Second	C 1 1346 (2007) 134 (2007) 134 (2007) 134 (2007) 134 (2007) 134 (2007) 134 (2007) 134 (2007) 134 (2007) 135 (2007) 134 (2007)	201357 222.005 1191437 236.009 235.423 43.500 47.109 20.277 42.427 59.435 59.4555 59.455 59.4555 59.4555 59.4555 59.4555 59.4555 59.4555 59.4555 59.4555 59.4555 59.4555 59.4555 59.4555 59.4555 59.45555 59.45555 59.455555 59.45555555555	535 294 294 214 214 560 514 838 514 838 514 838 514 838 514 838 514 838 514 838 514 838 513 500 514 838 513 514 514 51 514 516 73 991 514 516	224 180 200 8/7 365 638 153 855 555 660 87 812 110 246 505 459 88 018 71 218 99 925 73 124 74 238 76 438 76 438 76 68 68 018	203 824 203 876 203 876 203 287 203 203 287 203 207 203 207 200 200 200	336 300 306 308 308 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300	573 mi4 229 5029 5028 003 315 547 348 413 548 413 553 175 283 244 137	107 477 287 140 1880 148 153 153 155 165 166 166 166 166 166 166 166 166	847 205 207 1 208 1 207 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 204 204 204 204 204 204 204 204 204 205	273 219 241 2 118 2 118 2 118 2 118 205 201 205 805 805 805 805 805 805 805 805 805 8
Challerol Linge Linge Vile de Bruwhles Staambeek Zaambeek Anderscht Binges Namut Louwn Mientoesk- Saarb-Javan	54 694 89 943 129 680 6 211 5 966 60 855 42 529 35 334 12 965	208 384 218 623 63 508 47 929 70 277 62 427 58 523 58 445	231 502 184 838 123 671 86 412 93 562 77 564 67 322 63 922	185 639 133 859 105 602 87 812 116 246 105 418 86 914 71 219	196 623 183 287 131 548 120 009 118 536 111 127 102 126 87 365	100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100	384 229 1 023 800 1 15 147 156 464	427 207 143 1991 1448 153 182 191 530	367 208 103 1 702 1 472 191 248 249 500	372 219 541 2 118 2 012 196 281 269 807	102.08 00.39 32.61 8.14 17.74 138.40 175.69 56.03 5.09	1 102 2 834 5 621 6 160 6 705 858 631 1 803	102,5 73,3 81,1 08,8 06,2 04,1 111,2 98,1 113,0	Dist 0 2 2 Control of the second	C 1340 met Materials 128 428 128 428 128 428 128 428 129 428 129 428 129 428 129 428 129 428 129 428 12 42 12 428 12 428	341 557 222 895 194 447 236 894 238 423 47 509 47 509 47 509 47 509 54 533 54 455 57 545 56 500 66 783 54 65 57 784	525 394 324 236 310 727 314 838 523 633 86 413 31 960 77 564 87 332 80 571 80 772 80 771 80 773 80 771 80 771 70 233 31 556 71 921	224 180 200 8.77 385 6439 133 859 105 660 87 813 110 246 905 429 88 018 71 218 90 025 73 134 78 813 75 438 76 821 79 568	203 824 203 826 203 826 203 827 203 827 203 827 203 827 203 827 203 826 203 827 203 826 203 826 203 827 203 826 203 827 203	235 100 100 200 200 200 200 200 200	572 364 229 509 5028 903 315 547 348 444 548 441 553 573 203 2044	107 477 257 143 1480 1448 153 153 153 153 153 164 165 166 166 166	ni 7 205 205 207 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 205 203 204 204 204 204 204 204	173 219 543 2 518 2 612 205 201 205 201 209 003 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100

Figure 104 : Slide 6 of course 9, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

The process is simple to execute, just follow the instructions available in the course (Figure 104).

2. Websc	rapping from Chro	ome web browser	(Add-in not	and the shirt										
			(Auu-III, not	used in this	s case	e stuc	v)							
Fichier Accueil	Insertion Mise en page	Formules Données												
A MARKET AND A MAR														
	ertir d'un fichier texte/CSV	Cources récentes												
Obtenir des	ertir du web	Connexions existantes		-1969 B.	c .	D	E.		6	. н		1.1.1		
données -				7 # Commane	3840 Heb.	1900 Hall	1947 Hull.	2000 Hads.	2020 Halb	1845 index	1900 index	1947 index	2000 index	2020 index
	in a state of a second s			a 2 Good	138 687 128 828	383 557 222 895	254.236	449 525 224 583	327 763 263 614	300	123 123	444 197		445
A INFORM	A partir du web			1 Charlersi 4 Liber	51 634 89 943	198.827 206.384	233 737 231 502	200-827 585-639	202 176 196 623	330 330	364 229	427 253		372 259
1 INFORM	De base O Avancé			7 5 We de Bruerles	129 640	218 623	184 838	133 859	183 287	300	399	143	305	545
	De base - Avance			6 Schaerbeek	6.235	63 508	123 671	305.692	121548	100	1023	1991		2 558
A1 U	IRL			10 8 Bruges	80.855	70.277	\$3.062	555 245	118 536	330	115	158	395	195
	http://www.wikipedia.com	11/		11 7 Namer 17 10 Lingvalo	42329	62 427	17564	305 429 88-004	111 127	100	542	182	248	201
4				12 11 Molenberk-Salet Inur 12 More	12 065	58 445 77 263	63 102 64 072	71 319	97 345 95 368	350	484	530		807 583
1 commun				13 13 tecles	34.251	58 615	99 711	73 1 74	17 385	300	411	637	513	423
2 Anderlec				15 14 Aktet	32 950	50 500	79 347	29 353 75 438	87 204	500	153	222		204
				10 35 Litcolw	6.172	18.034	58 136	74.221	85 631	330	283	883	1 185	5.352
3 Brussel /				12 17 La Louistere	19 724 35 229	57 594 20 BL2	73 900 43 305	26 568 68 058	82-926 28-819	100	344	442	458 447	484
4 Elsene /				21 29 Seint Nicolau	29.904	42 672	57 846	72.883	78 520	330	942	192	228	262
5 Etterbeek		48		22 20 Ostavida 20 21 Courtral	28-022 35 144	41.547 50.540	56 554	87 279	71.501 77.076	330	259	353 145		A87 219
		43		24 22 Tournal	95.809	70 343	68.445	67 178	88.954	100	387	104	808	005
6 Evere														
7 Ganshoren		25												
		25												

Figure 105 : Slide 7 of course 9, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

The export of this data is a rather simple process but can cause some problems, some solutions of which are given in the course (Figure 106).

Veb Scraping and improving	the quality of th	e data	a:					2	
					Fichier Accueil Ins	rtion	Mise en page Formules	Données	
vpical Web Scraping problem	ns and cleaning s	soluti	ons		Apartir d'un	fichier	r texte/CSV 🛛 🖧 Sources	écentes	
					Obtenir des	191	8 - v Tableau1 2 - Éditeur I	Course Olivers	
					données - A partir d'u	-			
Names mismatching	Wrong Numbers/	Chara	cters		Récup	Fichie		Ajouter une	
and the second					INFORMATIONS SUR	a	Propriétés	14	
	 Colonne1.2.1 Colonne1 	.3 💌 Fusi	ionné 💌			Fermer		ncé Gérer les	
Anderlecht	121	394	121394		A1 * 3 3	charge		colonnes	
Brussel / Bruxelles	187	686	187686			Ferm	ver Requête		
Elsene / Ixelles	86	917	86917		1 communes		× √ f _X = Tabl	e.TransformCc	
Etterbeek	48	223	48223		2 Anderlecht	1			
Evere	43	481	43481		3 Brussel / Bruxelles	-te	- A ^B _C communes	* 1 ² 3 C * 1	
Ganshoren	25	202	25202		4 Elsene / Ixelles	nba	1 Anderlecht	121	
lette	52	604	52604		5 Etterbeek	~	2 Brussel / Bruxelles	187	
Koekelberg	21	997	21997	PowerQuery	6 Evere		3 Elsene / txelles	85	
Dudergem / Auderghem	34	937	34937	PowerQuery	7 Ganshoren		4 Etterbeek	-48	
Schaarbeek / Schaerbeek	130	270	130270		8 Jette		5 Evere	43	
Sint-Agatha-Berchem / Berchem-Sainte-Agathe	25	288	25288		9 Koekelberg		6 Ganshoren	25	
Sint-Gillis / Saint-Gilles	48	498	48498		10 Oudergem / Audergh 11 Schaarbeek / Schaert		7 Jette	52	
Sint-Jans-Molenbeek / Molenbeek-Saint-Jean	97	102	97102		11 Schaarbeek / Schaert 12 Sint-Agatha-Berchen		8 Koekelberg	21	
Sint-Joost-ten-Node / Saint-Josse-ten-Noode	26	809	26809		12 Sint-Agatha-Berchen 13 Sint-Gillis / Saint-Gill		9 Oudergem / Auderghem	34	
Sint-Lambrechts-Woluwe / Woluwe-Saint-Lambert	58	448	58448		14 Sint-Jans-Molenbeel		10 Schaarbeek / Schaerbeek	130	
Sint-Pieters-Woluwe / Woluwe-Saint-Pierre	42	106	42106		15 Sint-Joost-ten-Node		11 Sint-Agatha-Berchem / Ber		
Jkkel / Uccle	84	647	84647		16 Sint-Lambrechts-Wo		12 Sint-Gills / Saint-Gilles 13 Sint-Jans-Molenbeek / Mo	48	
Vorst / Forest	56	271	56271		17 Sint-Pieters-Woluwe				
Watermaal-Bosvoorde / Watermael-Boitsfort	25	190	25190		18 Ukkel / Uccle		14 Sint-Joost-ten-Node / Sain	26	
					19 Vorst / Forest	4 COLO	ONNES, 19 LIGNES		

Figure 106 : Slide 8 of course 9, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

When extracting data, the use of a table such as Excel is essential (Figure 107).

:)	port Data from the Web	o (2/2)					usegi usedag GS professional add		Eras
R	leb <u>Scraping</u> : Cleaning the data eference : Online PowerQuery o ools : Spliting/Merging/Removi	ourse (Micros	oft)		ichier Accueil Ins Ch A partir d'un Istenir des Istenir des A partir d'un Récup	fichier text		wer Query Ajouter une	
	금 �� + උ· ㅋ hier Accueil Insertion Mise en page Form	Test-FuseGis-datawrappe	er-bal Excel		INFORMATIONS SUR	Fermer et charger * Fermer	Actualiser Fapercu • Requête	Gérer les colonnes	
ОЬ	📄 🛱 À partir d'un fichier texte/CSV 🛛 🔂 Sou	rces récentes nexions existantes Act	Requêtes	1 2 3 4	Brussel / Bruxelles	tinba 1	A ^B _C communes	TransformCc 1 ² 3 C	
-	Récupérer et transformer des données INFOR À partir d'un tableau ou d'une plage	vé. Pour continuer à utilis	Requêtes et con	5	Evere	3	Brussel / Bruxelles Elsene / Ixelles	187 86	
A1	Créer une requéte liée au tableau ou à la plage nommée Excel sélectionné.	ve. Pour continuer a utilis	er Excei sans interrut	8	Ganshoren Jette Koekelberg	4	Evere	48 43 25	
	Si les données sélectionnées ne font pas partie d'un tableau ou d'une plage nommée, elles	В	c	1	Oudergem / Audergh		Jette	52	
1 2	seront converties en tableau.	 Colonne1.2.1 Colonne1.2.1 Colonne1.2.1 	lonne1.3 💌 Fusio 394	1	Sint-Agatha-Berchen Sint-Gillis / Saint-Gill	9	Oudergem / Auderghem Schaarbeek / Schaerbeek	34	
3	Brussel / Bruxelles	187	686		Sint-Jans-Molenbeel		Schaarbeek / Schaerbeek	25	
4	Elsene / Ixelles	86	917	1	Sint-Joost-ten-Node		Sint-Gillis / Saint-Gilles	48	
5	Etterbeek	48	223	14	Sint-Lambrechts-Wo		Sint-Jans-Molenbeek / Mo	97	
6	Evere	43	481		Sint-Pieters-Woluwe		Sint-Joost-ten-Node / Sain	25	
7	Ganshoren	25	202		Ukkel / Uccle		s. 19 LIGNES		
8	Jette	52	604		Vorst / Forest				
				21	Watermaal-Bosvoord	e / Water	mael-Boitsfort		

Figure 107 : Slide 9 of course 9, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

A case study on web scraping is available to practice its use. This course introduces this case study (Figure 108).



Figure 108 : Slide 10 of course 9, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

It is important to use a . Json to delimit the contours of municipalities (Figure 109).



Figure 109 : Slide 11 of course 9, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

The general steps of the case study as well as the purpose of the case study are detailed in this course. The case study includes more specific and simple steps to follow (Figure 110).



Figure 110 : Slide 12 of course 9, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

In the example of the course, the cartographic representation is created using the online tool "Data wrapper", not with the QGIS software **(Figure 111).**
t the map. \rightarrow 2) Copy-paste the cle	eaned dat	a. → 3) Ch	oose the colu	mn to visualize
Datawrapper			🖌 Dashboard	
lette carte est dans 🧝 Mes archives				Revenu imposable médian des déclarations
Sélectionnez votre carte 🖌 2 Ajoutez vos	données	3 Visu	alisez 🗸	Σ PDF JPG Xis Shp GeoJSON
-	Prer	mière ligne en étiquet	ttes	
the second		A Nom (fr.) 1	B Taloes 4	
A Star	1	Municipality	t new 4 vaccinated March	
	3	Auderghem	9.797636	
	4	Berches- Sainte-Agathe	21.357956	e states
2	5	Bruxelles	23.381073	
	6	Etterbeek	14,83317	
Now your map needs data!	7	Evere	17.175318	
Ne prefilled the table with Nom (néerl.) keys.	8	Forest	20.324857	
You can start adding your values or upload your own file.	9	Ganshoren	21.799857	
	10	Ixelles	16.81144	
Upload Match Check 🖌	11	Jette	22.064862	
	12	Knekelhern	27 838954	

Figure 111 : Slide 13 of course 9, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

The data is also sorted through the use of a table such as Excel or LibreOffice (Figure 112).

		-		vith Excel/LibreOffice
Contenu t		Conson	mation d'antibiotiques - c	exements []
Q Rechercher dam les Indicateurs	0		Contomination d'antibiotiques - conditionnement	
Etat de santé par proxy	-		111	
	⊞	Aalst	2,28	
Soins groupes cibles	EB	Aalter	2,58	
Consommation de médicaments	Q	Aarschot	2,39	A B C D E F G H Commune,Région,Province,Tas. Desegement à mettre en ligne systématiquement ces documents à l'avenir (ou/nonLexplication,Links,Coi
* Antibiotiques (ambulatoire) (* cf. NOTL		Aartselaar	2,57	2 Aiseau-Presles, Wallonie, Hainaut, "oui, pour les notes explicatives et l'ordre du jour (déjà ok) et en réflexion pour Imio", ""A l'heure actue
	e	Affigen Aseau-Ptesles	2,45	Suite aux discussions du Parlement wallon, nous sommes en réflexion quant à l'acquisition de l'extension du logiciel IMIO qui nous permi 4. Le Collège communal devra néanmoins encore se prononcer à ce sujet.
Conservation d'antibiotious	e	Alben	2,57	 Le contrge communa devia meannaire encore al pronuncer e ce sign.
		Alveringen	2,97	
	42	Array	3,27	
Secteur statistique (jusqu'en 2018)		Anal	1,44	
Quartier (jusqu'en 2018)	R	Andenne		https://www.aiseau-
✓ Commune (jusqu'en 2018) ***		Arsderliecht	2,12	presles.be/marcommune/vie- politique/conseli-commune/ldate-
	_	Anderlues	5.08	de prochein-consell-
Niveau de comparaison	Année	1	2004	communal sert, PS, 10.79, mill, mi
				Amay, Wallonie, Libge, Oui pour
				projets de délide, décision du collège du li avin 2021 mais pas
				accessible sur Transparencia
				https://transparencia.be/request/ projets_de_deliberation_des_poin
				projetta, oer_generation_oes_poin 3/Junt/ol-1/sinccoming-
				3323","**Suite à une décision du
				collège du 8 juin 2023, la commune s'engage à publier les
				communers stragger a power res
				délibération

Figure 112 : Slide 14 of course 9, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

These data are actual data of the vaccinated or unvaccinated population in the region and municipality of Brussels (Figure 113).



Figure 113 : Slides 15 and 16 of course 9, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

When using this data in QGIS, it is possible to add vector files from the region. These files provide details on the data according to the location of the data (Figure 114).



Figure 114 : Slide 17 of course 9, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

It is also possible to correlate average incomes with the percentage of vaccination or to correlate the average ages of populations with vaccination rates in the region and municipality of Brussels (Figure 115).



Figure 115 : Slides 18 and 19 of course 9, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.





Figure 116 : Slide 20 of course 9, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

Finally, this course concludes with practical observations concerning the use of web scraping and QGIS (Figure 117).



Figure 117 : Slide 21 of course 9, available via the FuseGI VLE platform.

4 The case studies

The case studies aim to **put into practice the theoretical knowledge acquired** through the courses. The **four available case studies** are linked to the three areas applied throughout the project, i.e. **forestry**, **health** and **hydrology**. Of these four case studies, one focuses on forest, one on health and the last two are oriented towards the field of hydrology. Despite the different areas of the case studies, **each brings essential knowledge to fully use GIS**.

4.1 LULC/FOREST case study

This first **case study is intended to take ownership of LULC**, i.e. **land use and land cover** for a defined area. The area studied is the island of Chios located in Greece. LULC is a dynamic feature that is useful to track relevant changes in land cover. This case study is created to test the skills acquired during the courses, aiming to map forest changes in Chios in three areas of different altitudes. The main questions are: **How has forest changed the last 10 years in Chios. Is there gain or loss of forest and is this gain/loss dependent to elevation?** The instruction for this exercise is given in the form of a succession of steps to follow (Figure 118). This sequence of steps is intended to answer a specific question (Figure 119).



Figure 118 : sequence of steps to complete the LULC exercise, available on the FuseGI VLE platform.



Figure 119 : Final question of the exercise, available on the FuseGI platform.

This exercise can be done in about 8 hours for people who are new to the field of GIS and are not familiar with using QGIS software.

As a first step, it is important to upload all the data available on the platform in the "provided material" space. Then simply launch the QGIS software and start the exercise. First, add the polygon downloaded from the island of Chios, then add the LULC (Figure 120).



Figure 120 : Overview of the "Chios polygon" layers and LULC in the QGIS software.

It is possible to cut the LULC directly to the shape of the polygon or to do it in the next step. In this example, we have chosen to categorize LULC into different classes. All you have to do is change the symbology of the LULC layer using the "categorized" symbol type and selecting the value with which we want to categorize the polygon. Next, change the style and select a style downloaded with the data for the exercise (Figure 121).



Figure 121 : Overview of the path to change the style of LULC.

We then obtain the map of Europe of several colors corresponding to different types of land cover (Figure 122).



Figure 122 - The result of changing the style of the LULC layer.

To make loading in QGIS faster, it is important to cut the studied area with the "Cut" tool (Figure 123).

	≠ A A B 4 ■ ≺ 0 0 4	0 = • • • = = = = = = • • • • • • • • •	
	6.8		AND MAR
	•	Couper Could source Could	
√ C2,2012,DU004,3035,V030 √ chios,boundary		Defaster comme processes de lat.	

Figure 123 : Using the "cut" tool.

We then obtain the following result (Figure 124):

Q *Projet sans titre — QGIS			0.000	5 ×
Projet Éditer Vue Couche Préférences Extensions Vecte	Raster Base de données Internet Maillage MMQGIS Iraitement	Aide		
·三国王的第三章 (1)	A 🖪 🝓 🖳 🗵 🕲 😂 🔍 📰 📾 💥 Σ 🚍 • 🗜 🍭 • 0	E •		
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	0 0 6 6 ··· • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	😤 📥 🔟 😿		
- 🔀 + 📑 - 🖏 - 🚢 - 📕 🔟 0,000 😂 💷 🛄				
Explorateur	e s			
G O Y I O				
🕎 Marque-pages	<u>^</u>			
Signets spatiaux				
 Accueil 				
CA CA				
😵 GeoPackage		(ma		
🖉 SpatiaLite	and the second s	the state of the s		
PostGIS		ABLAN WEIT		
MSSQL	Charles and the second s			
Oracle	Contraction of the second s	All State		
D82		Kat		
WMS/WMTS		A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A		
I Vector Tiles				
XYZ Tiles		The second s		
📾 wcs	*			
Couches	08	and the second sec		
《名本书行》通过[2]				
▼ ✓ P Découpé	•	ARC CONTRACTOR		
11110 Continuous urban fabric (IMD =>80%)		CEL SINK 1		
11120 Dense urban fabric (IMD =>30-80%)				
✓ 11130 Low density fabric (IMD <30%)		340		
🗸 🔜 11210 Industrial, commercial, public and military i	i (oʻ	and a second sec		
11220 Nuclear energy plants and associated land				
12100 Road networks and associated land				
12200 Railways and associated land				
 12310 Cargo port 				
✓ 12320 Passenger port	*			
14	IN LEGI			
Q. Taper pour trouver (Ctrl+K)	Coordonnée 5656646,1815332	Échelle 1:628178 - 🚆 Loupe 100% 🗘 Rotation 0,0 °	🖌 🖌 Rendu 🐵 🗄	PSG:3035

Figure 124 : Result of cutting the LULC layer.

Next, it is requested to add Google Earth in order to visualize the vegetation differences between the LULC and the aerial view (Figure 125).



Figure 125 : LULC layer superimposed with the aerial view of Google Earth.

The next step is to add a DEM layer. DEM layers are raster-like layers presented with the "tif" extension (Figure 126).



Figure 126 : The path to add the DEM raster layer.

We then obtain a raster type layer of the different altitudes on the island of Chios. It is possible to modify the style by categorizing it with the different altitude levels, but this step is not mandatory (Figure 127).



Figure 127 : Categorization of the different altitude levels.

Next, the raster must be reclassified using the "reclassify by table" tool. This step will assign a new value based on the ranges specified in a fixed table **(Figure 128).**

📽 🎕 Vi 🔏 🕷 🕅							1		
- 🔄 • 📑 • 📬 • 🖣 - 🙀 -				▲图•龍図•	AS - 13 16 60	* T 0, T			
Explorateur	08			1		CONTRACTOR OF STREET	States	Boite à outils de traitements	
Arque-pages	-	Qr	eclassification par ta	ble		×	16 A	Q, Reclassification	
Signets spatiaux Sossier du projet Accueil CA (OS)			ramètres Journal Table de reclassifical	kon		Reclassification par table		CUtilisé récomment Reclassification par table Q Analyse raster	
 GeoPackage 			Maximum	Valeur	Ajouter une ligne	Cct algorithme reclassific une bande raster en attribuant de nouvelles	En 1	Reclassification par couche Reclassification par table	
SpatiaLite	1	1	500	1	Retirer des lignes	attribuant de nouvelles valeurs de classe en fonction des plages	and the second		
SAP HANA	-	2	800	2	Tout enlever	spécifiées dans une table corrigée.	Cattra C	 Raster (r.*) r.reclass 	
MSSQL Oracle	ale and		1300	3	OK	in the second seco	A A A	SAGA Terrain Analysis - Morphometry	
WMS/WMTS Vector Tiles	-				Annuler			Curvature Classification	
Couches 💞 🎝 🐐 📽 🗤 = 38 🔅 🗔	08	-							
 Perte Végétation V V eu dem chios 	- 20	41. 15					da		
Bande 1: Band 1 (Gray)				0%		Annuler	1. 1.		
1 254,832994		Exé	uter comme processu	de lot	Exe	outer Fermer Alde	and the second		
0 Découpé CZ 2012 DU004 3035 chios boundary				KT.		9			

Figure 128 : Preview of the table to modify using the "reclassification by table" tool.



We then get a map with only three different elevation zones (Figure 129).

Figure 129 : Result obtained by reclassifying the raster layer to DEM.

Then, it is asked to polygonize the DEM raster into a vector using the "polygonize" tool. This tool creates a polygon with an attribute indicating the pixel value of the polygon (Figure 130).



Figure 130 : The path to follow in order to polygonize the raster layer into a raster layer.

It is therefore possible to merge the layers of the vectorized DEM and those of the LULC using the "intersection" tool **(Figure 131).**



Figure 131 : Path to follow in order to use the "intersection" tool.

The result obtained then corresponds to the two merged layers, in color the LULC and the black lines the limits of the three different altitudes of the DEM (Figure 132).



Figure 132 : The result of using the "intersection" tool merging the LULC layer and the boundaries of the DEM altitude zones.

Finally, the final step is the creation of a map representing changes in vegetation cover, whether it is a gain in forest or a reduction in forest (Figure 133).

Q °Cartn Mise en page Éditer Vue Éléments Ajourer un objet Atlas Paramètres		×
	More en page Pagetella de folgie Guida Ware en page • Carle de référence Carle de référence Carle de référence Carle de référence Carle de référence • Galasse af pille Espacement de la grile 10,000 • pers Vé doube de la grile pers V 0,000 • personation d'expact Brischein d'expacter come vechants	· · ·

Figure 133 : Creation of the cartographic representation representing changes in vegetation cover as a function of altitude.

Finally, it is possible following this practical case to determine what are the changes in vegetation cover in the three different altitude zones. In the area closest to the sea, vegetation cover has increased, while in the highest area at higher altitudes it has decreased. On the other hand, it remains unchanged in the average altitude zone.

4.2 Health Case Study

This second **case study is intended for online data search** and the **use of online tools**. The sector studied is the European city of Brussels in Belgium. This case study is created to test the skills learned during the courses, aiming to determine the rate of people vaccinated in each neighborhood of the city. The goal is to make a preliminary study of vaccinations in order to plan a new vaccination campaign (Figure 134).



Figure 134 : Health Case Study Objectives, available on the FuseGI platform.

As with the first case study, the steps to follow are available on the FuseGI platform **(Figure 135).**



Figure 135 : Steps to complete the health case study.

After downloading the data available on the FuseGI platform, we must add the polygon layer representing the city of Brussels and the different districts on QGIS (Figure 136).



Figure 136 : Preview of the "polygon" layer added in the QGIS software.

Then, after finding the necessary data on the internet, it is possible to load this data on a spreadsheet, such as Excel, by adding the data "from the web" (Figure 137).

a	B										٠	4	- <i>1</i> 1	
Fahis Accel kors	in Minutest	formation. One	stes Ross	ins all high	Adr						C De	enertie	is B No	
Carrieda De De	Astalan B.	Para di secon pripon renev Naciona Internet) Driverh	Develop a state	91 (1) 11 ³⁶⁰	$\mathop{\bigtriangledown}_{\rm Hor}$	Ni trans Ni transfilant Ni transfilant	(대학교 10 (대학교 10 (대학교 10		EB Araysa Araysa	faithe car	40 Art	T ₀ lickne	
tingine e acolema in i	bandes of		30	a da constitui) a sile		the ball of the second		144	-		Analysis.	~
42 91 100	- ja													- 0
		A partir d # De been 1 UN: beck-without	Australi	(File)gios de Lev	allar Containt	no de traj		A.	-					

Figure 137 : Overview of loading data "from the web" into an Excel spreadsheet.

The data can thenbe exported to QGIS, or can be used with on-line processing tools (Figure 138).



Figure 138 : Data processing using QGIS software.

Finally, the last step is the creation of the cartographic representation of the vaccination rate by neighbourhood in Brussels (Figure 139).



Figure 139 : Creation of the graphical representation of the vaccination rates of the inhabitants of Brussels using the QGIS software.

After making such a map, whether using QGIS or online tools, it is then possible to determine in which neighborhood it is important to carry out a new vaccination campaign.

4.3 Case Study 1 in Hydrology

This third case study is **intended to use useful tools in the case of a hydrological study**. In this exercise, users of the platform will have to assess the alteration of the coastline of a lake in Greece, which affects the residential areas and land use around it.

This case study is created to test the skills acquired during the courses, aiming to **map changes** in water bodies and alterations in lake hydromorphology (Figure 140).



Figure 140 : *Objective of the hydrology case study n°1, available on the platform.*

The instruction for this exercise is given in the form of a succession of steps to follow (Figure 141).

1.	Georeference both images
V	Course 4 (hint – georeference)
2.	Digitize coastline
V	Course 4 (hint – polygon)
3.	Create a buffer zone of 200m starting from the coastline towards the inland area (coastal habitat zone) for both years
V	Course 5 (hint – geoprocessing)
4.	Calculate difference in lake perimeter (m), lake area (m2), and buffer area (m2) among years
V	Course 2, 4 (hint – attribute table)
5.	Find what kind of Land Uses (CLC lvl2) substituted the area that used to be covered by water
V	Course 5 (hint – spatial analysis)
6.	Place images on DEM
V	Course 8 (hint – SAGA > Terrain Analysis) or Course 7 using GRASS
7.	Deploy Hydrographic network using the DEM
V	Course 8 (hint – SAGA > Hydrology > Channels)
8.	Calculate Strahler order
1	/ Course 8 (hint – SAGA > Hydrology > Calculate Strahler Order)
9.	Define lake catchment area and all sub-basins
1	/ Course 8 (hint – Catchment area) or Course 7 using GRASS
10.	Create a map pointing out the differences in LULC of the coastal habitats (buffer) with fully deployed hydrographic network
1	/ Course 6 (hint – map layout)

Figure 141 : List of steps to complete the case study, available through the FuseGI VLE platform.

After downloading the two aerial photographs of the lake dating from 1969 and 2016, you must launch the QGIS software to georeference the photographs (Figure 142).

TaudyCase Hydro DGIS Part I Early Vas Caudo Politic Tor Case Politic I Fair Vas Caudo Politic Tor Case Politic I Politic I Politic I Politic Tor Case Politic I Politic I Politic I Politic I Politic I Politic Tor Case Politic I Politic I Politic I Politic I Politic I Politic I Politic Tor Case Politic I	Fichier I	Éditer Vu	ue Paramètres	s	area of 1969 (witho					- D X	- 8 ×
 A * S B 2 □ ✓ S Aerial photography of t ✓ S Google Satellite Hybrid 					an na tha na Friddiana	nan 7 da Reso					
	Table des	points de	contrôle							0.00	1. 1.
	Activé *	ID	Source X	Source Y	Destination X	Destination Y	dX(pixels)	dY (pixels)	Résidu (pixels)	-	
	V	3	15.757218	1.596105	5264886.24	1903161.06	n/a	n/a	n/a		101
	V	4	5.628809	2.298747	5255593.19	1901328.92	n/a	n/a	n/a		Contraction of the
	V	5	8.041435		5255944.27	1909392.41	n/a	n/a	n/a		
	V	6	15.308537	10.244317	5262771.76	1910587.28	n/a	n/a	n/a		Parties Protocol
(V	7	10.257481	1.209585	5260118.30	1901294.71	n/a	n/a	n/a	*	¢ ✓ Rendu ⊕EPSG:3035 0
Q. Taper pour trouver (Ctrl+K)											

Figure 142 : Georeferencing of an aerial photograph, with QGIS software.

Georeferencing makes it possible to obtain aerial photographs of the lake at exactly the same location as the lake observed with Google Satellite **(Figure 143).**



Figure 143 : *Georeferencing result of aerial photography.*

Then, we must digitize the shores of the lake by adding a new Shapefile layer (Figure 144).



Figure 144 : Definition of the shores of the lake by creating a shapefile.

It is then possible to use the "buffer" tool to create a 200-metre buffer zone from the lake shore **(Figure 145).**



Figure 145 : The result of using the "buffer zone" tool.

Using the attribute table and the field calculator tool, it is possible to calculate the lake perimeter, lake area and buffer zone area (Figure 146).



Figure 146 : Calculations of the perimeter and area of the lake, using QGIS software.

By spatially analyzing the area, it is possible to find out how the land around the lake is used over the years. Then the DEM can be added. To facilitate its use, use the "cut" tool to obtain the DEM for the lake area only and avoid excessive loading times (Figure 147).



Figure 147 : Added the trimmed DEM layer in the QGIS project.

With the help of the DEM layer, it is then possible to start the more in-depth hydrological analysis, such as highlighting the hydraulic network in the area studied **(Figure 148).**

			- 5	_
Q *StudyCase_Hydro — QGIS			- 0 .	
	ecteur <u>Baster</u> Base de données Internet <u>Maillage</u> MMQGIS <u>I</u> raitement <u>A</u> ide			
다 다 다 다 다 다 다 다 다 다 다 다 다 다 다 다 다 다 다)P 🔒 B 😼 🖌 🗓 🕐 😂 I 🔍 🏛 🎆 \Sigma 💷 🕶 🖓 🔍 -			
: 🏟 🏟 Vi 🔏 🖏 📓 ! 📓 : : 🦧 🧨 📑 🎠 -	📰 등 🕫 🖻 등 순 : 🖛 🍕 👒 🖷 🔍 명 명 명 명 일 🕼 🕼 (🔮 : 🍓 : 📓	1		
: 🔣 🕶 📴 🕶 🌄 👻 💻 : 📕 💷 🔤 0,000 🗘 🔤 🛛				
Explorateur		Boite à	outils de traitements	88
G C T 2 0	Q Channel network	>	(🗟) 🐤 🔨	
Arque-pages			8	-63
Signets spatiaux	Paramètres Journal		lisé récemment	
Dossier du projet	Elevation	^	Charlie Hernorik	
	PEM_Decoupe []	¥	ASS	
GeoPackage	Flow Direction [optionnel]		agery (i.*)	
Spatialite		¥	SA GA	
PostGIS	Initiation Grid		rain Analysis - Channels	
SAP HANA	Flow Path Length [EPSG:2100]		S Channel Network	
MSSOL .	4 P	•	Schannel Network and Drainage Basins	
Couches			Overland Flow Distance to Channel Network	
 ≪ (8, ∞ % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % %	[2] Greater than	*	Strahler Order Valley Depth	
	Initiation Threshold		Vertical Distance to Channel Network	
0	0,000000	\$	Watershed Basins	
▶ □ □ □ CLC12_GR	A. A. M. M.		Watershed Basins (Extended)	
CLC12_case			GA Next Gen	
Mis en tampon	0%	Annuler	rain Analysis - Channels	
 ✓ ■ Coast ✓ ▲ Aerial photography of the area of 1969 (with 	Exécuter comme processus de lot	Exécuter Fermer	S Channel network	
 Aerial photography of the area of 1969 (with Bande 1 (Grav) 			Channel network and drainage basins Overland flow distance to channel network	
255		e la	Strahler order	
			Stranler order	
	V/ offering		S Vertical distance to channel network	
		- 11	S Watershed basins	
Aerial photography of the area of 1969 (wit.	Called and the second	a the second	🚱 Watershed basins (extended)	
4		- 4		
Q, Taper pour trouver (Ctrl+K)	Coordonnée 5259304 1904264 🛞 Échelle 1:69700 🔻	🔒 Loupe 100%	Rotation 20,0 ↓	Q

Figure 148 : Use of the tool "SAGA - channel network" to highlight the hydraulic network of the sector studied.

The hydrological study continues with the use of the SAGA tool "Strahler Order" (Figure 149).



Figure 149 : Result obtained after using the "SAGA - Strahler Order" tool in the QGIS software.

And finally, we want to define the watershed of the lake as well as the sub-basins. Forthis, it is necessary to use a last SAGA tool available in QGIS, the tool "catchment area" (Figure 150).

Q *StudyCase_Hydro — QGIS				- 0	×
	ecteur <u>R</u> aster <u>R</u> ase de données Internet <u>M</u> aillage MMQGIS <u>I</u> raitement <u>A</u> ide				
이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이 이) A 🖓 🖬 🖷 💺 🗓 🕓 🈂 i 🔍 🧮 🎆 🗵 📰 🕶 🖛 🖓 🖉				
📽 🎕 Vi 🔏 🧠 📓 🕺 : 🤼 / 号 🕾 🎘 👻	21 🗄 ~ 61 🗇 ~ 7 = 4, 1 4 = 1 4 4 5 5 5 1 4 4 6 🛠 1 🔥 1	I			
- 🔣 🕶 🖶 👻 🔜	📰 T- 🖬 📰 🗄 🖗 🕅 + 誌 🗹 + 🗆 🐝 🔽 😘 😘 🚛 🗐 +				
Explorateur @ 8	A DATA	H.C.	Boite à c	utils de traitements	8
G C T 2 0	Q Catchment area		×	2 🐤 🔨	
☆ Marque-pages ▲				1	-63
Signets spatiaux	Paramètres Journal			lisé récemment	
Dossier du projet	Elevation			Catchment area	
Accueil	DEM_Decoupe []		-	GA	
C\ (0S)	Sink Routes [optionnel]			rain Analysis - Hydrology	
🍄 GeoPackage 🖉 Spatialite	ank routes [optionine]			S Flow Width and Specific Catchment Area GA Next Gen	
PostGIS			• -	rain Analysis - Hydrology	
SAP HANA	Weights [optionnel]			Catchment area	
MSSOL *			•	S Catchment area (flow tracing)	
Couches 88	Input for Mean over Catchment (optionnel)			Catchment area (recursive)	
✓ ③ ● ▼ ⑤ = 第 営 □.			•	S Flow width and specific catchment area	
	Material for Accumulation [optionnel]				
	Preteries for Accumulation (optionities)				
■ 0			• - _•		
CLC12 case					
Mis en tampon	0%		Annuler		
✓ Coast	Exécuter comme processus de lot	Exécuter	Fermer		
 Aerial photography of the area of 1969 (wit) 	Executer comme processos de loc	Executer	Perme		
Bande 1 (Gray)		the state		-	
255		aller and			
	A statement	Dans 1			
		$\odot \cdot \lambda$			
0		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1			
Aerial photography of the area of 1969 (wit -	Conversion in the second second	1	-		
					-
Q. Taper pour trouver (Ctrl+K)	Coordonnée 5261851 1905282 🏶 Échelle 1:69700	 Loup 	el 100%	C Rotation 20.0 €3 C ✓ Rendu @ EPSG:3035	_

Figure 150 : Using the "SAGA - catchment area" tool in the QGIS software.

At the end of this analysis, it is possible to create a cartographic representation of the area studied (Figure 151).



Figure 151 : Cartographic representation of the different types of land used (LULC) in the buffer zone and the river network around the lake in Greece.

4.4 Case Study 2 in Hydrology

This last **case study is intended for the handling of the attribute table.** In this exercise, users of the platform will have to prioritize rivers according to their sensitivity, using several criteria in the perspective of climate change, in the PACA region in France. To do this, you will first have to download the data from the "provided material" section on the FuseGI platform. The steps to complete this case study are also available on the platform (Figure 152) (Figure 153).



Figure 152 : List of first steps in this Hydrology 2 case study, based on the FuseGi platform.

		Altitud	e of Wate	r Body	
		1	2	3	
	1	Low	Low	Mediu	m
Low water pressure	w water pressure 2 Low Medium High		h		
	3	Medium	High	Higt	h
	Fields Geol cat	Criteri	a		Coding 0
The other entend are do			by crossin	g, to nur	e a total maximum score of 10 at the end.
			a		
Influence of groundwater	CE_exoge	-	exogene a		0
	or_ovoge	s	exogene c		+1
	E	aluation		Coding	
Pressures on		w influence		+1	
hydromorpholog	у м	edium influen	:0	+2	
		gh influence		+3	
		aluation		Coding	
	Ev	Evaluation			
Pressures on riv		v influence		+1	
Pressures on riv system	erine Lov	v influence dium influenc	θ.	+1 +2 +3	

Figure 153 : List of final steps in this Hydrology 2 case study, based on the FuseGi platform.

After opening the QGIS software and adding the region layer as well as the MDORiviere layer, it is possible to cut the MDORiviere layer in order to keep only the part concerned by our case study, i.e. the part of the PACA Region. You must then add the downloaded table by following the following path "layer", then "add a layer", then "add a spreadsheet layer". Then, in order to facilitate the processing of data between the table and the cut MDORiviere layer , it is necessary to go to the parameters of the latter and create a join between the two layers **(Figure 154).**

C=最轻达和《国中美点部月山	ritariet w. Alina				
ROULER B LAISS	- * Joindre in couche SYRAH-sensiti Re				
8-0-0-1- = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = =	Gi Echenia io nuov	Gi Echenia (cintuse veccodelle X			
STY#		The second secon		1.000	
V wyw grapes		View how could be		2.40	
Source Cartes	Company Jacker	H Dige		1000	
	Clane daw	······································		1000	
CARRY		content a telli citar se veno		1. 1. 10	
Contrivingo	Chierter Adaction	Orienter nature des states de la fort la canagio e internative Francésies cheminique Transference des décisions			
Spelara III Chara	Formatains chron				
SATINA Produ	The Day 1	The Dise Diversion is to Differ			
B faces		An Lin		1000	
des	and the second se			1.00 103	
1++++++++	The second second	ç		Sec. 1.	
V Dicest			+15	100	
of III Readow BREA	af beingte en Af Benef	ek.			
- 2005 New	J. J. sugar		12	200	
2 🖉 SSN Standard	1 Charleston	a sufficie du nom du strana-		1000	
() to	and the second se	a stage of loss of politi-			
and shows the	VE 6H,			17 44	
11:140	10 C	28 Aude	4.0	a second	
Service Servic		1. A Martin		No. 17.16	
State of the second	+ - 7			PACK .	

Figure 154 : *Steps to join the table and the MDORiviere layer in the QGIS software.*

Once the join is done, when we open the attribute table, we find both the attributes of the MDORiviere layer cut and those of the table (Figure 155).

	7 KNR los auto bei	SYRODA Double.	STREET, MARKE	White and the	Silve Subaranjacogi	WWW.committeep	SHAP was a	subspikedow of	http://www.pation	STREET, CARDIN	(Refer products)
ii)	LOW.	iów.	100	Midely	MON	MICIN	iOW.	pes.	NEX IN	ew.	HGH.
116	SINDUN	iów.	100	ION .	MEDRAM	106	1044		WW.	iow'	MUNIM
117	0.009	inw.	Avea.	iow .	LOW .	100	MORE		1178	iow :	LOW .
112	STON	iow.	1044	20W	1044	204	MEDICAL		ww	£W	104
118	6.NITEUN	inw.	NO	inv.	104	104	104		107W	icw	104
179	LION	iúw.	No.	iow.	1631	100-	10W		una	KW :	109
121	SNOUN	iów.	NO.	WO:	1044	ICA .	104		109W	ICW .	LOW
177	8104	EW:	71.51	iow.	1099	01000	LITTLE BUT		IITA	IOW .	1196
tia.	5.004	ÚW.	wide .	kiw.	18:31	MICON	1.094		ADW	HEAT	HIDDH
114	CONTRACT .	iów.	NOTE:	1050	104	104	1044		1074	IOW.	ATMA .
10	INDUH	-8-1	19-13	ion .	1010	MICON	MADERI		HIN .	NW .	1019
25	1 N00/04	19021	160	IOW.	HOH	100	1044		H01	WOI	LOW .
is/	1 IDM	EW:	No.	iow .	3299	104	MICHAN		1174	ICW .	109
148	DIMERUM	EW.	m.1.5	NW .	1.000	MI2.09	100		WW.	ICW*	HUNH
04	SNDIN	iow.	800	WITH	arwy.	CA.	inw.		1174	icw.	arme.
i-a	i-tow	iów:	MTER .	XIW .	12100	ACK	MEDIAN		шw	sisw'	109
120	5.004	ICW.	NVO.	SOW.	1891	104	10w		WW.	iCW .	109
112	b.High	MICHAN	NUS	iow.	HIRM	10.0	10M		WOW	ICW.	10W
122	S-LOW	iow.	NUL	WW.	HERRY	104	LOW		WW.	20W	HERRIC

Figure 155 : Preview the attribute table after joining the two layers.

It is then possible to perform all the steps of data classification thanks to the attached attribute table and to obtain the most sensitive rivers in the face of climate change (in red) and those least sensitive (in white) **(Figure 156).**



Figure 156 : Result after classification of data, in red the most sensitive rivers and in white the rivers least sensitive to climate change.

5 Innovation, Tangibility and Transferability

IO4 training toolkit assists end users to deal with geospatial data and their transformation into trustworthy and actionable information; through GeoInformatics (GI), which include a number of different technologies, processes, and methods that allow the effective acquisition, processing and analysis of accurate and up-to-date geospatial data. Concerning Quality indicators measurement, 9 training videos and an equal number of guides were developed to assist new GIS users to get familiar with commands processes and applications' usefulness and to also work as a guide for more GIS-experienced users. Two different types of modules (teaching and/ or training) are supported and more are considered (with modifications) giving the possibility for the toolkit to be included even in life-long learning courses.

Innovation

The teaching material produced contains several novel and innovative elements, which can be found from the design phase up to the teaching phase, as:

- All materials in the toolkit are novel, free of rights and created within the consortium.
- It assists the enhancement of competencies of professionals supporting digital education.
- It bridges academic and professional needs in different key environmental and health sectors.
- It covers simultaneously market skills gaps and educational/cognitive ones.
- It supports distance training novelties: different forms of communication and learning (Hybrid supported besides asynchronous through chats), two-way evaluation process, self-assessment, supplementary data provisioning, without fixed time courses but of relative duration
- It endorses different teaching methods: connection making, increased autonomy, no limits hands on practice.

Tangibility

A lot of effort was put, in order to create tangible results, since design phase of the teaching material, as:

- Has homogenous but yet flexible structure for each course within the VLE.
- Offers ability for adaptation and evolvement, i.e., adaptive international curriculum (from postgraduate to continuing education for engineers) targeting skills acquired in GIS.
- Adopts no discrimination policy with provision for inclusive and equitable online learning environment

Transferability

The main concept was to develop a tool that could easily be transferred and either adopted as it is or evolved, depending on the users' needs. Having this in mind the two major aspects were covered:

- The toolkit supports openness in all stages: the entire tool is based on freeware (QGIS) supporting openness in its entity using explicitly creative commons rights, open data, open courses and free books and manuals in the PowerPoints and in the supplementary material and operating through an open VLE platform. This also enhances the innovative character of the produced toolkit.
- This IO includes a detailed methodological approach, with rational explanation, which is easily transferable to other developers.